NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the TWENTY SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of M/s. RAINBOW PAPERS
LIMITED will be held on Monday, the 16t day of September, 2013, at 11.00 am, at Ahmedabad Textiles Mills Association
(ATMA) Hall, AshramRoad, Ahmedabad — 380009, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1)

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 315tMarch, 2013 and the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date together with Directors’ and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

To declare Dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company, for the financial year ended on 315 March, 2013.

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Kantibhai Patel, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Rahul Maheshwari, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution asan Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 224 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
1956, M/s.Talati & Talati, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (ICAIReg.No. 110758W) be and are hereby re-appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the company at aremuneration as may be decided by the Board of
Directors as per the recommendation of the Audit Committee and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses actually
incurred by them in connection with the Audit”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6)

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of Sections 198, 269, 309 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time-being in force, (“Act), read with Schedule XIIl thereto and as recommended by Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for reappointment and payment
of remuneration to Shri Ajay R. Goenka as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years from
21.8.2013t020.8.2018 (both days inclusive), on terms and conditions as set out in the draft agreement to be entered
into between the Company and Shri Ajay R. Goenka, a copy whereof initialed by the Chairman for the purpose of
identification has been placed before the meeting, which agreement is hereby specifically approved with liberty to the
Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors to alter, vary and modify, from time to time, the terms and conditions
of the said appointment and/or agreement including review of remuneration annually and/or otherwise, in such manner
as may be decided by them and agreed upon by Shri Ajay R. Goenka, and in accordance with the limits prescribed under
Schedule XlIl to the Companies Act, 1956 or any statutory amendment(s) and modification(s) thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 198, 269, 309 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 1956, the remuneration payable to Shri Ajay R. Goenka as the Managing Director by way of salary,
perquisites, commission and other allowances, shall not exceed 5% of the net profits of the Company computed in the
manner as provided in Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 and 10% in aggregate for all the working directors of the
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year of the Company during the
tenure of Shri Ajay R. Goenka, Managing Director of the Company, the remuneration, perquisites and other allowances
shall be governed by the limits prescribed in Section Il of Part Il of Schedule Xl to the Companies Act, 1956, as amended
fromtime to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors of the Company, be
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters or things and they may take such steps necessary, expedient
ordesirableinthisregard.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PLACE : AHMEDABAD RUNEL RATHI

DATE

. 8" August, 2013 COMPANY SECRETARY
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NOTES:

a)

AMEMBERENTITLED TO ATTEND ANDVOTE AT THE MEETING ISENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY OR PROXIESTO ATTEND
ANDVOTE, INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY FORM, IN ORDER
TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESSTHAN 48 HOURS BEFORE
THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

Members/Proxies should bring the enclosed Attendance Slip duly filled in for attending the meeting along with a copy
ofthe Annual Report. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are
requested to send a certified copy of Board Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote on their
behalf in the meeting.

Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their Client ID and DP ID Numbers and those
who hold the shares in physical form are requested to write their Folio Number(s) in the Attendance Slip for attending
the meeting.

The Explanatory Statement in respect of Items No. 6 pursuant to Section 173 [2] of the Companies Act, 1956 is annexed
herewith.

The relevant details of director seeking appointments/re-appointments under Item No. 3 and 4 above, as required by
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements entered into with the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited are
also annexed.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 10* September, 2013 to
16" September, 2013 (both days inclusive).

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify the change in addresses, their pin code numbers, email
addresses and telephone numbers, if any, to the Company at its Registered office or to M/s. Sharepro Services (India)
Private Limited - Registrar & Share Transfer Agents by quoting their folio numbers. Members holding shares in electronic
mode may update such details with their respective Depository Participants [DP’s].

Members holding shares in physical form can avail of the nomination facility by filing Form 2B (in duplicate) with the
Company or its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent which will be made available on request and in case of shares held in
dematerialized form, the nomination has to be lodged with their DP’s.

Members are requested to note thatdividend not encashed or claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to
the Company’s Unpaid Account will, as per Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

The details of unclaimed amounts are as follows:-

Year Date of transfer to Amount unclaimed Date of transfer
unclaimed account ason 31.03.2013(Amountin INR) ofdividend
2005-06 26™" September, 2006 148320.00 3"“November, 2013
2006-07 21t September, 2007 147900.80 28" October, 2014
2007-08 22" September, 2008 198596.80 29" October, 2015
2008-09 23" September, 2009 235230.95 30" October, 2016
2009-10 8t July, 2010 193672.00 16" August, 2017
2010-11 27" September, 2011 199108.40 3"“November, 2018
2011-12 27" September, 2012 216798.80 3 November, 2019

The applicants / Members wishing to claim unclaimed dividend are requested to correspond with the Compliance
Officer or Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company i.e. M/s. Sharepro Services (India) Pvt. Ltd.



i)  Thedividend as recommended by the Board, if approved by the members at the Annual General Meeting will be paid
within 30 days from the date of Annual General Meeting to those members whose names stand registered on the
Company’s Register of Members:

1.  as Beneficial Owners as at the end of business on 9™ September, 2013, as per the data to be furnished by M/s.
Sharepro Services (India) Pvt. Ltd. in respect of the shares held in electronic form, and

2. asMembersin the Register of Members of the Company after giving effect to valid share transfers in physical form
lodged with the Company on or before 10" September, 2013.

i)  Members of the Company who have multiple accounts in identical names or joint accounts in the same order are
requested to send all the share certificates to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents M/s. Sharepro Services (India) Pvt.
Ltd. or to the Registered Office of the Company for consolidation of all such shareholdings into one account to facilitate
better service.

k)  Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the Accounts and Operations of the Company are requested
to address their questions to the Secretary of the Company so as to reach at least seven days before the date of the
meeting, so that the information may be made available at the meeting, to the best extent possible.

I)  Inallcorrespondenceswith the Company orwith its Share Transfer Agents, members are requested to quote their folio
number and in case their shares are held in the dematerialized form, they must quote their Client ID and their DP ID
Numbers.

m) The shares of the Company are in compulsory demat segment. Those members who still continue to hold shares in
physical form, are requested to get their shares dematerialized at the earliest.

n)  Securities and Exchange Board of India vide its circular has made it mandatory for every participant in the securities/
capital market to furnish Income Tax Permanent Account Number (PAN). Accordingly, all the shareholders (including
joint holders) holding shares in physical form are requested to submit copy of their PAN Card along with the share
transfer form to our Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Sharepro Services (India) Pvt. Ltd.

0) Acopy of revised Certificate dated 15" May, 2013 issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company to the effect of
compliance with entire Chapter VIl of SEBI ICDR (Regulations) 2009, is also available for inspection to the members of the
Company per undertaking sought from the Company by NSE, while giving approval for listing 0of 15,00,000 Equity Shares
allotted on part conversion of 90,00,000 warrantsissued on 20.12.2012.

ANNEXURETO NOTICE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956.
Item No. 6

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 8" August, 2013 had subject to approval of membersinageneral
meeting reappointed Shri Ajay R. Goenka as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 years from August 21,
2013 to August 20, 2018 (both days inclusive).

The terms of his appointment and the payment of remuneration have also been approved by Remuneration Committee at its
meeting held on 8" August, 2013.

The principal terms and conditions as contained in the draft agreement are as under:-
The re- appointment shall be for a period of 5 years from August 21, 2013 to August 20, 2018.

Shri Ajay R Goenka, subject to such instructions and directions as may from time to time be given to him by the Board of
Directors ofthe Company (hereinafter referred to“the Board”) shall endeavor to comply with such directions and subject to
such restrictions as the Board may in its sole discretion impose. Shri Ajay R. Goenka shall have powers to look after day to day
affairs of the Company and enter into contracts on behalf of the Company in the ordinary course of business and to do and
perform all other acts and things, which, in the ordinary course of business, he may consider necessary or proper or in the
interest of the Company.

During the period of his employment, Shri Ajay R. Goenka shall whenever required by the Company, undertake such travelling
inIndiaand abroad as the Board may from time to time direct in connection with or in relation to the business of the Company



Remuneration and Perquisites:

Shri Ajay R. Goenka shall be entitled to the following remuneration and perquisites:-

(@)

Salary

Salary: ~ 14,50,000/- per month in the scale of ~ 14,50,000/- - ~ 50,000/- - ~ 16,50,000/-.

Perquisites

The Managing Director will be entitled to the following perquisites subject to maximum ceiling of ~ 1,00,000/- p.m. as
under:

i)

(if)

(i)

Housing

Furnished accommodation with the electricity, gasand water supply.

Medical Reimbursement

All expenses incurred by the Managing Director for self, parents and family shall be reimbursed by the company.
Contribution to Provident Fund

Company'’s contribution to Provident Fund as per Rules of Company.

(iv) Gratuity

As per the Gratuity Act and rules of Company, but shall not exceed half month’s salary for each completed years of
service.

Leave Encashment:

The Managing Director shall be entitled to fully paid leave as per the Company’s Rules. Encashment of leave at the
end of the tenure is permitted.

The retirement benefits as provided initem (iii), (iv) and (v) shall not be included in the computation of ceiling on
remuneration of Shri Ajay R. Goenka to the extent provided in clause 2 of Section Il of Part Il of Schedule XllIl of the
Companies Act, 1956.

Other Allowances

a) Thecompany shall provide a chauffer driven car for use on Company'’s business and also for personal purpose
and telephone at the residence of the Managing Director.

b) The company shall provide for self and family, once in a year, to and fro fare for any place in India/abroad in
accordance with rules of the company.

c) Annualfees of club subject to maximum of one club.

d) Reimbursement of all entertainment expenses and other expenses properly incurred for the business of the
Company.

The Managing Director in addition to above shall also be entitled to such other benefits or amounts as may be
approved by the Board subject to such modification as may be made by the Board within the limits onremuneration
prescribed from time to time under Schedule XlIl of the Companies Act, 1956.



(vii)

(viii)

(vii)

Minimum Remuneration

In the event of loss orinadequacy of profits, the Managing Director shall be entitled to receive the remuneration,
perquisites and benefits as Minimum Remuneration as provided in under para 1 (B) of Section Il of Part Il of
Schedule XIll of the Act as notified from time to time.

Overall Remuneration

The aggregate of salary, commission and perquisites in any financial year shall not exceed the limits prescribed
from time to time under Section 198, 309 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 read with
Schedule Xlll of the said Act, as may for the time being be in force.

Commission

Shri Ajay Goenka will be entitled to a commission up to 2% of net profits within the overall ceilingon the remuneration
at 5% of net profits. For this purpose, Net Profit shall be computed in accordance with the provisions of Section 349
& 350 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Shri Ajay R. Goenka shall not be entitled to payment of any sitting fees for attending any meeting of the Board
of Directors of the Company or any Committee thereof.

A copy of the draft Agreement referred to in the resolution at Item No. 6 of the accompanying notice is open for
inspection by a Member of the Company at the Registered Office of the Company on any working day between 11.00
am and 1.00 p.m., upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

None of the directors of the Company except Shri Ajay R. Goenka be deemed to be concerned or interested in the said

reso

lution, since itrelates to his re-appointmentas the Managing Director of the Company.

The directors recommend the resolution for set out at item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice for your approval.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PLACE : AHMEDABAD RUNEL RATHI
DATE : 8™ August, 2013 COMPANY SECRETARY
Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment in the ensuing Annual General Meeting
Name Shri Ajay Goenka ShriKantibhai Patel ShriRahul Maheshwari

Age 55Years 66 Years 37 Years
Date of Appointment 11/09/1990 12/08/2010 30/08/2011
Qualification B.Com. B.Sc.,LL.B.,, MLW ACMA
Experience 35Years 40Years 11 Years




Important Communication to Members

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a“Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance”
by allowing paperless compliances by the Companies and has issued circulars stating that
service of notice / documents including Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its members.
To support this green initiative of the Government in full measure, members who have not
registered their e-mail addresses, so far, are requested to register their e-mail addresses, in
respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through their concerned Depository
Participants. Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to fill the form attached
to the Notice and register the same with M/s. Sharepro Services (India) Pvt. Ltd., at their office
situated at 416-420, 4™ floor, Devnandan Mall, Opp. Sanyas Ashram, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad.




RAINBOW PAPERS LIMITED

Registered Office: 801, Avdhesh House, Opp. Shri Guru Govind Gurudwara,
Sarkhej - Gandhinagar Highway, Thaltej, Ahmedabad- 380 054 (Gujarat)

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Please fill in Attendance Slip and hand it over at the Meeting hall
Joint Shareholder may obtain slip on request.

DP ID* Folio No.:
Client Id* No. of Share(s) held
Name of Shareholder Name of the Proxy

hereby record my presence at 27" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at Ahmedabad Textiles Mills
Association (ATMA) Hall, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad — 380 009 (Gujarat) on Monday, 16th September, 2013 at 11.00
a.m.

Signature of the attending member / Proxy

RAINBOW PAPERS LIMITED

Registered Office: 801, Avdhesh House, Opp. Shri Guru Govind Gurudwara,
Sarkhej - Gandhinagar Highway, Thaltej, Ahmedabad- 380 054 (Gujarat)

PROXY FORM

DP ID* Folio No.:

Client Id* No. of Share(s) held
I'We of in the district
of being a member / members of the above named Company, hereby appoint

of in the district of
or failing him

of in the district of

as my / our proxy to attend vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 27" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held at Ahmedabad Textiles Mills Assaociation (ATMA) Hall, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad — 380 009 (Gujarat) on Monday,
16th September, 2013 at 11.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

Affix
Re. 0.15

Signed this day of 2013. Revenue
Stamp

. . . . Signature of the member
* Applicable for member holding shares in electronic from. across the stamp

Note: The proxy in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed and signed and be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not Less than Forty Eight hours before the time of holding the aforesaid meeting. The Proxy need not be
a member of the Company.
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forward looking statement

in this annual report, we have disclosed forward-locking Information to help investons comprehend
our prospects and take informed investment decisions. This report is based on certain foresard-
looking staternents that we pericdically make to anticipate results based on the managerment's
plans and assumptions, We have tried whenewer possible 1o identify such staterments by using
wiords such as ‘anticipates] ‘estimates) ‘expects’ 'projects; intends! "plans, believes' and words of
similar substance in connection with any discussion of future perfarmance. We canmot guarantee
that thess forward-looking statements will be realised, although we beliews we have beon prudent
in assumptions. The achlevement of results is sulbject wo risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate
assurmptions, Should known or unknown risks or uncertaintes materialise, or thoubkd underling
assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated,
astimated or projected. We underiake no abligation o publicly update any forwarnd-leoking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or othersise
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Hear Fedlow Fhareholder,

It gives me an irmmense pleasure o report thit
‘Rainbow Papers Ltd' has continued to grow during
the fiscal 2012-13, in spite of the fact that the world
bt become & far more econamically difficult place
According to the Warld Bank, global GDP growth has

fallen considerably,

The global dermand for paper is shrinking in the
advamced econombies mostly on account of a
widespread digitalization and serious penstration of
the high speed broadband internet which is
promoting increasingly paperless systems and wider
access to information. Morth America at a peak of 30.7
millicn tons in 2004 is now at 22 million MT. Similarhy,
Western Eurcpe is down to 22,6 million ton from peak

of 28 million tan.

The good news is that the story of developing
countries like India and China is a contrast as they
continue to witness strong growth. China which mow
has the largest paper indwstry in the world, has seen

the sector grow in recent years, In India, (oo, paper



demand continues to grow with education constituting an increasingly
significant proportion of the budgets of a rapidly increasing number of
hiouseholds. Thus, in paper as in many other areas, it is clear that the
wedge between the advanced countries and the emerging economies is

widening especially so in Asia

& may wvary from year to year, But, | don't fiorsee falling demand in the
foreseeable future, Therefore, the company's top-line should continue to
grow. Strong performance ina challenging scenario is the result of

Rainbow's strategic positioning and global balance.

Thowgh the year had been challenging bt for wour company, it was
marked by strong execution and good results. This has been substantiated
by the leading business magazines, Your company is ranked as 751 for

2012 im Business Standard (B51000) as against 863 for the year 2011.

I am further pleased to inform that we have been ranked as 272 under the
India's fastest growing mid-sized companies’ by Inc India 5000 for the year
2012 during the fourth Inc India 500 Awards. We have also been upgraded

by Business World's ranking from 349 [in 2010 2) to 261 {in 201 3

'Emerging Corporate in Manufacturing Sector” was awarded by SME
Chambser of India to your company. Mumber Cards definitely paint a better
picture than words, Your company has achieved total produection of

| 49,251 MT as compared to 1,39,5%6 MT in the previous year. The
company has recorded Gross 5ales of © 921.50 Crores which is up by

+ J0E.00 Crores from the previous year

The relative stability in critical raw material availabilety with higher

realizations and revenue growth has helped our EBITDA to grow by

EAINBIE PAPERS LI )



25% Yo'f to T 136.5 Croves from T 1094 Crores last year. The Yo¥ grawth
of 33% has been registered in the net profit also.

Our focus has always been on providing a world class work environment
for our employees, We have tried to ensure that our Human Resource
practices are benchmarked to global standards. Durlng 201 2, two of our
employees were conferred with "SHRAM RATHA AWARD' by Labowr
Ministry, Gowernment of Gujarat, which is only possible when a person is
working in a healthy environment. In our strive to reach greater heights
we are targeting to enhance our production capacity by another 1,00,000
MTPA by commissioning of our various projects which are in pipe line
\Folding Duplex Board Project), Stationery Project that is producing
niotebooks and copier paper.

Your compamy always had an integrated approach towards its social
responsibility and by way of protecting nature, Here, | am proud to say that
we have already successfully incorporated a *Zero Discharge’ strategy by
comverting bricks from fiy ash and laminated sheets from the rejects of

waste paper.

In my concluding paragraph, | would like to congratulate my team for
deing a good job in such trying times, my finance advisors who have
helped us to keep key investments in place in such a vedatile scenario of
the currency. And last but not the least, my heartiest gratitude to my
sharehalders for their continuous support and trust inus,

AJAY GOENKA
Chairrnan & Managing Director
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ey,

The Members,

RAINBOAY PAPERS LIMITED,
AFMEDABAD

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting herewith the 27 Annual Report together with the audited statements for

the financial year ended 31% March, 2013,
Financlal Highlights:

The standalone and consolidated results of your company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 201 3 are summarizad

hereln below:

{7 In Lacs)

FINANCIAL RESULTS CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE

2012-13 2011-12 201213 201112
Revenue from Operations 01548.69 61077 .64 L4217.24 45987.62
Profit before Exceptional, Extra ordinary items,
Depreclation, Interest & Tax 13647 56 1094236 10675.78 9548 08
Depreciation 2566232 257045 266231 257045
Profit befone interest & Tax 1098524 airziem 201347 697853
Interest 366975 F911.85 337629 2E58.M
Profit before Exceptional & Extraordinary ltems &Tax 731549 5460.06 4737.18 411962
Prios Period items / Exceptional iterms 12328 (3.76) 12.25 (3.76)
Taxation: Less/ (Add) Current Tax Si48.25 BB4.15 Q7 50 85173
MAT Credit Entitlement AT [3113.84) {748.16) {318.84)
Ceferred Tax 1083.67 06,74 1015.67 306,74
MET PROFIT AFTER TAX FORTHEYEAR 611400 A504.25 ELELR 327625
fdd: Balance brought foreard 13244310 S344.03 11931659 “344.08
MET SURPLUS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 19338.31 13048.28 15467 85 12620033
Capital Reserve on Consolidation Z 15.33
Proposed Dividend/ Dividend Paid 41847 38087 418.87 1B0.87
Corporate Tax on Dividend 7.0 61.77 71.0 61.77
Transfer to General Reserve 270.00 246,00 27000 24600
Surplus carried forward to Balance Sheet 18598.43 13244.3] 1470796 1193169
EPS [Face Value of ¥ 2 per share)
Basic .46 514 3.74 366
Diluted 6.30 4895 EET 3.52

“Inclucles ¥ 24 Lacs pald as dividend on comversion of &0,00,000 warrants into equity shares before recond date in 2002 but

after approval of Annual accounts,

*Previous figures have regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.



Dividend:

Based on Company’s performance, your Directors are pleased to recommend a Dividend @ ¥ 0.40 per Equity Share (previous
year T 0.40 per Equity Share) on the face value of ¥ 2/~ each for the financial year 2012-13 on 9,87,17,300 equity shares of the
Company. The dividend, if approved by the members would involve a total cash outflow of T 394,87 Lacs and the dividend tax
of T67.11 Lacs, Any new equity shares allotted on conversion of warrants, if any before the record date shall also be entitled
for dividend and the total dividend amount may increase to that extent,
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Transfer to Reserves

A sum of ¥ 270 Lacs is proposed to be transferred to the
General Retervad out of the tatal amount available for
appropriations, Anamount of ¥ 18593 Lacs is proposed to
b retaineed in the statement of profit and loss,

Share Capital

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 20° December
20 2 had allotted 20,00,000 Convertible Warrants to one of
the Promaters Group Company at T 81~ per warrant 1o be
convertible into Equity shares within a maxdimum period of
18 menths from the date of allotment. Ouwt of the said
00,000,000 convertible warrants, 15,00,000 Warrants have
been opted for conversion into eguity shares on March 30,
2013,
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Review of Operations:
The brief highlights of the consolidated results of the
Company during the year ane as urder:
Your company has achieved total production of
1,49.251.23 MT as compared ta 1,39,596 MT In the
previous year,
our campany has recorded Gross Sabes of T 9214 Crores
as compared to T &13,3 Croves for FY12, a oy growth of
S0,
The EBITDA for the financial vear 3012-13 s ¥ 1365 Crores
compared to ¥ 109.4 Crores last year, registering a growth
af 25% you.
The Met Profit is at ¥ 61.1 Crores compared to T 461
Crores last year, a yoy growth of 33%.
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Subsidiary Companies

Your company was having two wholly owned subsidiary
companies viz. Rainbow Papers JLUT, Dubai and Rainbow
Infrabuild Private Limited, India, Both the Companies were
engaged in trading of paper. The Board of Directors in its
Board meeting held on 3™ May, 2013, has decided to disinvest
the equity share holding of the company in M/, Rainbow
Irvfrabouild Pyt, Lt at fair market value as the company intends
o set up the Box Board Project in MYs. Rainbow Papers Ltd
itself, instead of the subsidiary,

In accordance with the general exemnption granted by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, the
Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Directors” Report,
Auditors' Report etc. of the subsidiary companies are not
attached with the Annual Report of your company.

B

Thee annial accounts of vour Company's subsidiares as stated
above and the related infarmation shall ke made available
to the sharshalders of the Cormpamy and its subsidiaries upon
receipt of a request from them. Such statements shall alsa
be kept open for inspection at the Registered Office of your
Company and its subsidiaries during business hours.

Capacity expansion:

The present production capacity of the Company is 3,05,000
MT per annum which is utilized to manufacture among the
existing product ramge certain other value added products
such as Copier paper, Maplitho, Glazed paper, LW, Coated
Paper etc.

Yesur company is further implementing ongoing expansion
projects to enhance the production capacity from 3,05,000



RATRA to 4,656,700 MTPA_ The said proaduction capacity will be
enhanced by cormmissioning of the following projects:

al  Folding Duplax Board Project

Yoar Company has planned to install BM-9 Machine with
acapacityof 132,000 MTPA at an approsimate Cost of T
480 Croves. The production from the sakd machine shall
be used In the packaging of cosmetics, cigarettes,
mediclnes, elecirical appliances, etg, The plant |5
expected to be commissioned by Financial Year 201 5.

b} Mill Modemization and Production of Motebooks &
Copier Paper

Existing PM4, PM5 and PM7 will be modernized to
enhance the net capacity by 29,700 MTPA. The Costs
feor thwe Modernization is € 150 Crores, The modernization
praject is expected to be completed by financial year
2014, The company is making entry in value added
Consumer Products segrment by manufacturing of
Notebooks and Copier Papers under “Rainbow” brand.
Thie anmual production capacity for Notebooks will be
20,000 MTPA and for Copier Paper will be 7,500 MTPA

“Zero Discharge® Strategy:
Along with backward integration, the Company has also"Zero
Discharge” strategy which not only improves operational
efficiency but also augments earming margins. The following
are the major areas forming part of this strategy:
Efficient plant layvout & different produect mix allows
better utilization of raws-rmaterials.

Innowative ideas & approaches towards productive usags
of by-produscts.

The Company is manufacturing bricks out of the Fly ash
generated as by product of plant, The residual waste
segregated from imported waste paper is utilized for
manufacturing laminated sheets,

Finance:

The Company was able to arrange finance at competitive
rates inspite of challenging market environment o meet its
fumds requirement for expansion programme and warking
capital for day 1o day functioning. During the year under
review, the consortium bankers of the Company have
sanctioned sdditional berm loan of ¥ 369 Crares for s ongoing
expansicn pregramme,

As in the past, the Company maintaimed cordial relationships
with its bankers and was able to avail and negotiate favorable
terms fior various banking facilities.

Exports:

Your Company exported 25,7%8.73 MT of paper during the
yearunder review. The export proceeds amounted to ¥ 9245
Lacs {being 10.03% of Gross Sales) as compared to ¥ 10,991
Lacs during the previous year.

The main contributors for the satisfactory export
parformance wara increased focus on export market
development and product quality that matched the
imternational standards.

With firm commitments and throwgh sustained efforts, your
Company continues to maintain good rapport with glakal
custamers, Dur quality products and timely delivery have
found wide acceptance in the highly competitive
intermational market,

Clur products are being exported across the globe, to name
a fewr among them are Africa, Middle East. South East Asia,
WEA, WK, France, Indonesia, Sri Lanka, Egypt and
Bangladesh. With the clear aim and determined focus, your
Company kooks forward to explore some more untapped
intermational markets.

Imports:
Your Company imported 62,602.30 MT of waste paper and
218,67 MT of chemical during the year under review.

The impoms amounted to ¥ 8047 Lacs of waste papser and T
107 Lacs af chemicals as compared to ¥ 7210 Lacs of waste
paper and T 129 Lacs of chemicals respectively in the
prewioas year,

Board of Directors:

Shiri Kantibhal Patel and Sh Rahul Maheshawari, Directors of
the Company are due to retire by rotation at this Annual
General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for
re-appodntment,

As stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with
the Stock Exchanges, brief profile of the Directors proposed
to be re-appointed, nature of their expertise specific
functional areas, names af companies in which they hald
directarships and membershipsichairmanships of the Board
Cormmittees and shareholding are provided in the Beport on
Corparate Governance farming part of the Annual Repart,

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Fursuant 1o the requirements under Sub Section 28A of
section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956, with respect o the
Directors’ Respansibility Statement, itis hereby confirmed:-

i1} that in the preparation of Annual Accounts, the
applicable Accounting 5tandards {AS) have been
fodlowed along with the proper explanaticn relating to
material departures, if amy.

12} that the Directors have selected such accounting podicies
and applisd them consistently and made judgement
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so a5 10
give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March, 207 3 and of the Profit for the
year ended on that date,
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(3] thatthe Directoss tothe best of their knowledge and
ability have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting recards in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 1958,
far safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and otherimagularities.

(4] thatthe Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts
have been prepared on a “gaing concern basis”

Audit Committee:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 2924 of the Companbes
Act, 1956, the Board of Directors of the Company has
constituted a committee of Board of Directors as Awdit
Committes which now consisis of the following members:

i.  5hriShashikant M. Thakar : Chairman & Indepandant
Directar

2. 5hriRajendraPatawari @ Independent Director

3. Shr Kantibhal Parel ¢ Iindependent Directos

Audit Committes has such powers and authority as provided
umder the aforesaid provisions and acts in accordanca with
the terms of reference specified in writing by the Board of
Darectors from time to time.

Fixed Deposits:

Your Company has notinvited or accepted any fied deposits
from public in terms of provisions of Section 58-4 of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Acceptance
of Depaosits] Rules, 1975 and, a5 such, no amownt of principal
or interest was outstanding as on the balance sheet date,

Insurance:
The Company's properties ir'|-:_I|||;Iir'||_| Iiuill_lirlg. Plart ard
Miachirery, Stocks, Stores, e, have been adeguatehrinsured

Global Depository Receipts:
A5 on 31 March, 2013, votal 2,85.39,725 number of GDRs
are outstanding fos converskon.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor
Education and Protection Fund:

I terms of Section M50 of the Companies Act, 1956, the
unclaimed dividend aggregating to T 2,048,609/ ving with
the Company for a periad of seven years pertaining to the
vear ended on 31 March, 2005, was transferred during the
year 201 2-13, ta the lnvestos Education and Pratection Fund
established by the Central Govemment,

Infrastructure:

The manufacturimg facility of the Company is located
approdimately 40 kms from Ahmedabad, 350 kms from
hundra Port & 550 ks from Nhawva Sheva Port, thus cffering
good legistical advantage. It not only ensures steady raw

material supply of imported waste paper but also provides
aasy accass to global markets like Middle East and Africa,
thus providing a boost to its expart business. & part from this,
the Company aleo saves on freight cost within India which
sormetimes forme a major portion of the total cost.

Besides. one of the critical inputs for paper production is
uninterrupted power supply. Disrupted power supply not
only hampers production but also impact client
manufacturing process, thus affecting the relationship, Hence
inorder to ensure guality power supply, your Company has
set up a I5MW captive power plant which is sutficient for
the total capacity of 4,665,700 MTPA,

Awards and Accolades:

Your company has received the following awards during the
year under review:

T TG TR TR R T T o
[ EE TR B

Two ernployees of cur cornpany - Mr. Tushar Patel and
Mrs. Amitaben Patel have been conferred with Shram
Ratna Award 3012 by Labour Ministry, Governirment of
Gugjarat.

272 Rank under the India's fastest growing mid-sized
companies by Inc. India 500 for the year 2012 during
the Fourth Ing, India 500 Awards,



Emerging Corporate Indla In Manufacturing Sector
by SME Charmber of India.

The Promoters of the Company ranked 261 as per
Business Waorld in its rating "The Rich List 20137 We
were ranked as 349 in 2012 tor the same.

Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo:

The particulars as prescribed under section 217 [1] {e] of
the Companies Act, 1956 read with Rule 2 of the Companies
[CHaclosure of particulars in the Repart of Board of Directors)
Rules, 1988 regarding conservation of energy, technoloay
abworption, forelgn exchange earnings and outgoe are given
I Annexure' A forming part of this Report.

Particulars of Employees:

The information required as per Sub- Section [24) of Section
217 of the Companies Act, 1958 read with Companies
(Farticulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended and
forming part of the Directors’ Report for the yearended 31%
March, 2013 Is enclosed and it is forming part of the Report.

Corporate Governance:

The Company is committed to maintain the highest
standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the
Corporate Gowernance requirements set out by SEBL The
Company has also implemented several best Corporate
Governance practicoes as prevalent ghabally.

The Report on Corparate Gowernance as stipulaved under
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement forms part of the Arnnual
Repaart

A requisite certificate from the Statutorny Auditors of the
Company, confirming compliance with the conditions of
Corporate Governance, as stipulated under clause 49, 5
attached tothis repaort.

Information Technology:

Muost of the functional areas of your company are working
on IT [Information Technology) platform, to name a few:
Planning, Raw Material, Purchase, Finance, Sale, Weight
Bridge, Production, HR etc.

We are wworking with live ERP systerns, modules and functions,
Our entine plant is under observation on CCTV cameras and
P System [Pulblic Announcenvenis] for safiety and security
purpose,

Occupation, Health and Safety Policy:

The Company has i place Oocupational Health & Safety Policy
wihich focuses on peogle, technobogy and facilitles, supported
by Manaaement commitrent as the prime driver. A dedicated
Safety Management Team |5 workling towands the prevention

of Man, Machine and Materlal incidents at the corporate and
manufacturing units level, and towards education and
mativation of the ernployees on varous aspects of Health,
Safety and Emviranment theaugh traknlng programmes and
saminars, The Company holds certificates on Integrated
Management Systems of 150 14001 (Environmental
Management Systerns) and BS OHSAS 18001 (Health and
Safety). The Company recodnizes its human force as the maost
imnpaortant asset and |s deeply committed to providing a safie
and healthy working envirenment for its ermployess.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

During the year under review, the compamy had donated TV
and Video CD player for the purpose of education and
effective communication to Jhulasan, Vadu and Rajpur Gram
Panchayats in Mehsana District which is nearby o the factory
premises for the benefit of children studying in various
schoodsin the said area.

Further, the company had organized Blood Danation camg in
coondinationwith Tevapanth Seva Samites and mone than 100
bottles was donated, The company has also conducted free
meeddical checkup camps for the natives in the nearby vicinity,

Your Company celebrated various festivals like Ganesh
Mahotsav, Independence Day etc. wherein awards were
aiven to the Waorkers of the Company for encouraging
productivity and efficiency at Factory and create harmonious
industrial relations, sense of unity and brotherhood amaong
local resbdents staying In surrocunding area.

Your company has also made representation to the State
authorities and the woark for broadening of the road from
Rajpur to Jhulasan has been approved by the Government,
wehich wiill eaze out the local dwellers and school autharities
hardships and facilitate smooth transportation and create
accident free area by placing the Traffic Boards for the safety
and security of school going children as well as general public
at large in the said area,

Quality Initiatives:

RASEOW PAPERS LTD 1]



Wi continue our journey of delivering value to our clients
through significant investments in queality programs. We have
adogted several external benchmarks and certifications. Your
Company is certified under variouws standards to meet clisnts’
requirements and enhancing valuable dalivery.

Accreditations & Certifications:
Yaur Comipany continues to hoabd the following:

a)] 1509001 £150 14001 Accreditation

Your Company's Quality Management Systems continue
to be covered by the "150 90077 accreditation.
Company’s Environmental Management System
continues to enjoy “150 140017 accreditation.

b} OQHSAS 18001 Certification

Your Company continues to enjoy certification under
Decupational Health and Safety Assessment Seres
TEODT [OHSAS) which s an International Standard which
facilitates management of Oooupational Health and
Safety risks associated with the business of the
organization,

€} Star Export House

Your Company is recognized and awarded as “5tar
Export House®™ by Director General of Foreign Trade,
New Dielhi,

d) Forest Stewardship Coundil {FSC) Certification

Scientific Cartification Systemis (SC5), wheo is accredited
by the F5C, has awarded to your Company. the Forest
Stewrardship Council (FSC) Certification, valid till May,
2015.F5C s an international certification and labeling
system that guarantees that paper and wood products
carrying the F5C label come form environmentally and
socially responsible sources.

Credit Rating:
The current Bank Loan rating as assigred by the CRISIL is as
urder;-

Facllity Rated Amount | Rating

{7 In lacs)
Cash Credit 11105 | BEB+/Negative
Term Laan B5345 | BBE+/Negative
LC & Bank Guarantes) TeS0 | A2
Total 104100

W2 indicates strong degree of safety regarding timely
payment of financial obligations and therne is low credit risk.

‘BEB+" are judged to offer a moderate safety with regard to
timely payment of financial obligaticns forthe present.
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Cost Auditors:

A per the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2011,
the Company filed the Cost Audit Report along with Cost
Compliance Report for the financial year 20171-12 in XBRL
format.

The board of directors, subject to the approval of the Central
Government, re-appointed Mr. V.H. Shah, Cost Accountant,
as a Cost Auditor for conducting the Cost Audit for the
financial wear 2013-14, The audit committee of directors
recommended his re-appointment.

The Company has also received a letter form the Cost
Auditor, statireg that the appointment, if made, will be within
limits prescribed under Section 22418} of the Companies
Act, 1956

Dematerialization:

The Equity shares of the Company are in compulsory demat
segmentand are available for trading in the depository system
of both National Securities Depository Ltd (N3DL) and the
Central Depositony Services (India) Lid, (CD5L). 9,76,69,395
mos. of equity shares forming 98.94% of the equity share
capital of the Company stands dematerialized on 317 March,
2013,

Listing of Shares:

The equity shares of the Company are presently listed on
the BSE Lid. and the Naticnal Stock Exchange of India Limited
(MSE]. The BSE & MNSE hawve nation wide termimals and
therefare, shareholdersfinvestors are mot facing any difficulty
intrading in the shares of the Comparny from any part of the
Caumntry.

The GORs' of the Company are listed on Euro MTF Market of
Luzembowrg Stock Exchange

Your Company has paid annual listing fees for financial year
201 3-2014 10 B5E and N5E, Anmual maintenance and listing
agency fee for the cabendar year 2013 has been paid by the
Cormpany 1o Luxemboung Stock Exchange, Luxemboung, Your
Company has also paid custodial fees (o Mational Securities
Depasitory Ltd. and Central Depasitory Senvices (India) Ld,

Statutory Auditors:

B Talat] & Takatd, Chartered Accountants, Statutary Auditors
af the Comparny, hold offlce untll the conclusion of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for
reappodniment,

The Company has received a letter from the Auditors to the
affact that their reappointment, if made, would be within
the prescribed limits under Section 224{18) of the
Companies Act, 1956 and that they are not disqualified for
reappointment within the meaning of Section 226 of the
said Act.



Auditors’ Report:

The notes to the Accounts referred toin the Auditors’ Repon
of /s, Talatl & Talav, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad,
are self explanatory and therefore do not call for any further
explanation under Section 217 { 3 ) of the Companies Act,
1956,

Industrial Relations:

Imdustrial Relations remained cordial throwghout the year
under review. Several industrial relation initiatives
implemented by the Company have significantly helped in
improving the work culture, enhancing productivity and
enriching the quatity of life of the workforce.

PLACE : AHMEDABAD
1 37 MAY, 2013

Appreciations and Acknowledgements:

Your directors wish to express thelr sincere appreciation of
the valuable support and quidance provided by the Stock
Exchanges and cther Regulatory bodies.

Your Directors alsa take this opportunity to acknowbedge
the continued assistance and co-operation received from
Banks, Government Agencies and the Shareholders,

Your Directors alsowish bo place on record their appreciation
for the valuable services rendered and the commitment
displayed by the employees of the Company and look
forward to their continued support in the future as well.

FOR ANDON BEHALF OF BOARD OF IRECTORS

ALRY R GODEMKA
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

Declaration:

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved and adopted Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management
Personnel. | hereby declare to the best of my knowledge and belief that, all the Board members and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Comduct for the current year 2012-13.

PLACE : AHMEDABAD
DATE : 3" MAY, 2013

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AJAY R GOENKA
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
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ANNEXURE = A

ADTHTIONAL INFORMATION A5 REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 217({1) (e} OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 AND THE
COMPANIES {DISCLOSURES IN THE REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988,

COMNSERVATION OF EMERGY:
1. | Emergy Conservation Measures Taken fa)  Yearly energy audit for steam & power.

ibh Swstemn study related 1o operations & maintenance,

i) Implementation of controls & atomization's related
to energy. power, water, raw material, chemicals.

iy Wariable frequency drives instalbed for major critical
areas in all continues rin & high power consumed
areas resultedin o EFvE Y SEWIng,

tel  Onlinevibration & condition monitoring system to
observe abmormality of equipments installed for
rotating equipments resulted in to saving inenergy
aswell as break downs.

if) Complete plant operation hooked up with DCS
system bo optimize rroublbe free, efficient running
of plant with interlocks resulting in energy saving
and increased productions,

tgl  Instaflation & up gradation of (oC5 system to save
quality & energy of production.

thl  Complete Energy Audit for Steam, Power & system
study done by reputed agency every year.

2| Additional Investment & Proposal, if any, being @l Imiplementation of Energy saving Bghtingsin entire
implemented for reduction in consumption of energy premises of the plant,

ikl Emplementation of Hegh efficient motors & pumps
along with WFL¥'s are installed at waricus places.

ey Automation of switching on & off motors of puemps,
fans, lights, critical equipments instesd of manual
operatian,

idl  Synchromlzations with plant & power supply with
DCS to bear load factors & supply power as per
plant demand.

i, | Impactof measwres at (1) & (2) above for the Al the above measures have resulted n substantial
reduction of energy consumption and conseguent savimgs Imenergy cost & cost of production of goods,
imnpact on the cost of production of goods.

4, | Tatal Energy Consumption and Energy Consumplion Form = A [annexed herewith),
per unitof Production,




FORM A

(See Rule 2}
{¥ In Lacs)
FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF EMERGY
2012-13 2011-12
A : Power & Fuel Consumption
1.  Ebectricity
(a) Purchased
Total Umnits (keh) TI6740 7755593
Tatal Amount 112.92 106,38
Rate ¢ Unkt (T) 1533 13.72
(b} Cwn Generation
} Through Diesel Generator Ml Mil
i) Through Turbine
Tetal Lirvits 100677816 08150655
Urits per ton of Lignite/coal 86632 |
Cast/Unit (1] 4.02 1.65
2. Coal
(I For Power Generation
Total Quantity [Tans) 112324 SE3TE
Total Cost 04532 358572
Average Rate 1) 360228 364491
(if For Steam Generation
Total Quantity (Tons) 118810 107275
Tatal Cost 428435 3909.23
Avarage Rate {1/ Tons) 350804 364412
B: Consumption perUnlt of Production;
Product Unit [ Tons) 149251.23 139595.42
Electricity (KwhuTans) 543,77 490,35
Stearn Coal | Kags.Tans) 43991 39008
(Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherewer necessary]
RAINEOW PAPERSLTD 13




FORM-B

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

1, Specific areas inwhich 8 & D carried out
by the Companty,

(2]

Utilization of 100% Fly Ash for Fly Ash bricks
manufacturing, which is generated from boilers by
burring of Fuel like coal & lignite.

(k)

Ltilizatlon of effluent long fiber sludge in to Board
Paper.

L)

Installation of Waste recycles fiber sheet plant to
convert waske fibers in to usable corrugated roof
sheet & Plain Sheets.

)

R&D i progress far utilization of De-inking shudge in
to useful CLC Light Weight Blocks for Building
Material,

(e

Effective steps are taken to recycle back water by
pusification through sand filter, carbon filver & duplex
Bag filters.

[

Fuel additives introduce with Lignite & Imported coal
tor better combustion in boiler.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D,

E]]

Great achlevernent on waste management.

(b

Increase of fiber yield.

icl

Effective utilization of ignite & coal,

(dl

Consurnption of fresh water has reduced and effective
use of treated back water has improved. The revenuse
is generated from wastage like of Fly Ash, Recycle
Waste Fiber,

3, Further planof action

(4]

Installation of CLE Light Weight Block Plant,

(B]

Installation of effleent water fortification system.

EXPEMDITURE OM R&D

a  Capital

by Recuring

) Tkl

i Total A& D espenditure

e} Asapercentage of total turmover,

Mo specific expenditure i incurred.




I TECHNOLOGY ABRSORPTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION:

1. | Efforts, in brief made towards Technology abeorption,
Adoption and Innovation

Upagradation of various Paper machine, Pulp Milland ETF
systemns for better fibar recovery with the help of
ultramodern equipments is made by team of Rainbow.

2. | Benefits divided as a result of the above effarts e.g,
Products Improvement, Cost Reduction, Product
Development, Import Substitution etc,

Timers are placed to save maximum power,
a, improved inyield,

b reduction Incast

¢, lesser break dowmn of machines,

d unificrm quality of finlshed products.

3. | Incaseofimported Technalogy (mported during the
last 5 vears reckorved from the beginning of the
Fimancial Year] following information may be furnished.

{a)  Technology Imported

Yoith make German Plant and De-inking plant from Kadant,
Lamaort, France & QCS system from LIK

been taken place, reasons therefore and future
plans of action.

{by  Yearof import 2007-2008 | 2008-2009, 2011-2012
2l Hastechnalogy been fully absorbed YES
idh vt fully absorbed, areas where this has not Paper plants Imported from Germany have been installed

and the De-inking plant & QCS system Is also installed.

L FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

a Activities relating to Export initiatives taken to
increase development of New Export market for
Products and service and Export plants.

The company has exported its product to Africa, Middle
East, South East Asia, U5SA, UK, France, Indonesia, Bangladesh
& 5riLanka during the year under rewvisw.

b Total Foreign Exchange Earned and Dutgo;

Forsign Exchange Eamed ¥ FIB299 Lacs

Foreign Exchange Outgo T 1180262 Lacs
FOR ANDOMN BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PLACE : AHMEDABAD AJAY R GOEMKA
DATE : 9 MAY, 2013 CHAIRMAM & MAMAGING DIRECTOR
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Annexure

SrMo.| Details reqguired under Section 217(24) of the Companies Act, 1956

1 Mame of the Employee Shiri Ajay Goenka

2 Remuneration received (in ¥) ¥ 91,16,507/-

3 Mature of employment, whether contractual or otherwise Cortractual

4 Cither terrns and conditicns As per agreement dated
3092008 and Addendum to
agreement dated 08.07. 3010

5 Mature of duties of the employes Managing Directar

6 Qualifications and experience of the employes B.Com., 34 years of experience

Fa Date of commencement of employment 17,09,19%0

B Age 56 years

9 The last employment hedd by such employee before joining the company. | In APL since inception.

10 The number & percantage of equity shares held by the employee in the 11,23,250 BEquity Shares, 1.14%

company within the meaning of sub-clawse (il of clause (a} of sub-zection
124} of sectian 217 aof the Act.




MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION

ANALYSIS
REPORT

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The developed economies of Morth America and West Europe accounted for a lion's share of global paper capacity and
consumption. However, in the last few decades, combination of factors like the economic slovedown, stricter legislations
etc., in the developed economies coupled with rapid growth of Asian economies resulted in a shift in demand &

production from North America & Europe towards Asia & Souwth America of wihich Asia currently accounts for nearly 45%
of global consumiption.




Clabhal Capacity Dharrview - 354 Clebal Capacily Charview - 455
MTFA (FYT0k MTPEA IFY1SER

45% 0%
| Asia & ME N Eurcpe O M, Armarica H Asia & ME N Eurnps O M. Amarica
B S Amarica @ Crhers B S Amarica o Cithars

Source: wwwkagaz.oom

Additionally, the rising levels of literacy in the region and the sustained threst on increasing the reach of education are
expected to provide the backgrownd for sustained dernand for paper in this geographny. Today, Indian Paper & Packaging
Board industry in particular is emerging as an important global player & iz already among the top 20 global markets.

indian Paper Industry
10.9 mn Tonnes- FY11 (7% CAGR over FY07-11)

| | | |
Pt P £ o A ™
Wiiting & Printing 0 Newsprint 2 Paperboard Specialty Paper
+ 3.5 mn Tonnes (325 = 1.95 mn Tonmes [18%) (Industrial Paper) « O min Tonnes (4%

= 5 mn Tannes (46%)

= bEducation, Office = Newspaper printing = FMCG, = Cigareites,
Printing, Pharmaceutical, Construction
Advertisement & Horticulture, Foods & s Electricity, Offices &
Publicity and Liquids, Consumar s Households
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Source: wWenw kagaz.com

India accounts for nearly 15% of the workd's population whereas it consumes only 3% of the global paper produection,
India's per capita paper consumptionis ~ 9 kgs w/s the global average of -~ 58 kgs, thus providing one of the highest
growth potential due 1o lowest per capita consumpdion amongst keading economies, On an average, every 1 kg of
incremental consumption would resultin additional demand of ~ 1.2 MTPA of capacity, Paper industry growth mirnors
India's GOP grawth & hence we expect domestic paper demand to grow at ~ 7-B% going ahead,




Thie following are the major demand drivers of the
paperindustry:

Looking at the growing dermand, the guestion which
arises is whether the domestic supply would be able to
match it taking inte consideration the various
challenges in the paper business, The fallowing are
the few major entry barriers for any new entrantinthe
industry:

1. Huge Capital Investment (T 65,000-75 000 tonme)
2. Long Gestation Period,

3. Strict Emvironmental Compliances (Waadd
Plantations, Water Treatment etc,)

4. Scarcity of Land, Water, Electricity & Fuel,
5. Economies of Scale.
8. Limited avaitability of wood based fiber.

High Fragmentation to result in Consalidation:
Indian Paper Industry is highly fragmented with many
small & marginal players operating in waricus regions
across India. Average capacity of these players is much
lesser at 25,000-35,000 MTPA compared to lange
domestic (400,000 MTPA). High Capex requirement
coupled with long gestation pericd makes it financially
unviable fior smaller players to further expand their
capacities. Also, bulk quantities required by the
consumers preferably from large suppliers results in
loweer bargaining power for these players.

Un-interrupted power and steam supply a1 reasonable
cost s ane of the important criterions for efficient
eperations & bence its a pre-requisite to have captive
prower plant {CPF] for paper manufaciurers. Significant
upfrant investment, cblaining regulatory approvals,
securing fuel linkage etc. makes its unwiabde for the
small and marginal players to set-up CPP for paper
production, Also, increasing power tanffs coupled with
lack of proper grid connectivity makes it non-feasible
For players 1o go for outright power purchase as iDwoulkd
impact the profitability of the Company,

Apart from consistent guality power and stearm supply,
water also plays a major role in the manufacturing
process. Majority of the players rely on ground water
as a source of supply. However with depleting ground
water levels, these players wiould have to resort to some
ather means going ahead. Aleo overall increasing water
scarcity coupled with stricter environmental
compliances has further added to the problems of
thase players. Setting up of Water Efluant Treatment
Plants (ETP) is capital intensive & hence difficult for
these players considering their size of operations.

Considering the above hindrances, it's becoming more
& micre difficult for these small & marginal plavers to
survive in this intense competitive market, Hence, we
expect industry to consolidate over a period of time
with imminent closure of small mills, Foreseeing this
huge opportunity many large arganized players
including AFL have undertaken huge expansion plans
to be implemented over the mext few years,

Wastepaper as raw material -"the prudent choice”
Recycled paper for as a source of raw-material
constitutes nearly 1/3% of the Indian paper industry
which is expected to increase substantially with
incremental paper production. Company utilizes waste
paper as its key raw material as against wood pulp
which is used by majority of its peers. Waste Paper
affers varous imherent benefits compared to pulp like
foweer capes, easy availability, lesser environmental
damage etc., thus giving it an edge over its peers.
Increasing awareness about recycled paperis likely to
weork im favor of the company over a longer term.

A shift towards recycle paper is visible with
government abolishing import duty on wastepaper in
Budget 20012-13 after it has been reduced from 5% to
2.5% in Bugdget 201 1-12, With opening up of FDI in
retail sector and global retail giants like Wal-mart
ervtering India; the demand for paper in India will further
g0 up in the years to come,

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Your company is one of the leading players in the paper
industry having wide product portfolio of even more
tham 200 products at one single window catering to
diverse segments in domestic as well as intermational
rmarkets such as U5, UK, Middle East & South Africa.
Currenitly, it is the 6% largest paper manufacturer in
Imdia with a total capacity of - 3,05,000 MTPA. With
the ongoing capacity expansion for setting up of
Faolding Duplex Board Project, the compamy will havea
Capacity of 4,66, 700 MTPA by June, 2015,

Yoaur Company has chalked aut hege expansion plan to
be implemented over the next fiew years, Increasing
focus on value-added products, backward integration
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to-source key inputs coupled with inmovative strategies
implamentad by tha Company would not only enable
the Company to oparate efficiently but also help it tap
niewier avenues. Currently miajority of the value-added
product like non-carbon, glazed, light weight and
thermal papers are imported. Hence in order to explodt
the opportunity, the Company has forayed into this
segment via its current expansion plan.

Mareover, the Company also has a strong reputed
clientele base which includes Navneet Publications,
Hindustan Unibewver, Colgate Palmolive, Mirma, Dainik
Bhaskar, Indian express, Samrat Newspaper and many
micre, [t also caters o various state education boards
and ather Government bodies such as NCERT, IGNOU
ete., thus having a diverse clientele base,

Alsg integration of captive power plant (- 35 MW
affers uninterrupted power supply & makes it more
cost-effective. Moreower strategic location advantage
coupled with near*Zero Discharge” initiatives not only
improves oparating efficiency but also augment
mmangins.

ONGOING EXPANSION PLANS:

The present production capacity of the Company is
3,005,000 MT per annur which is utilized to manufacture
amang the existing product range certain ather value
added products such as Copler paper, Maplithao, Glazed
paper, LWC, Coated Paper etc.

Your company is further enhancing the production
capacity from 305,000 MTPA to 466,700 MTPA, The
said production capacity will be enhanced by installing
Falding Duplex Baard Project and Modernization af
existing machines, The Company is making an entry in
Corsumer product segment by making Notebooks &
Coprier Plpeer,

RISK & COMCERMS:

The Company considers good Corporate Governance
asa pra-requisite for meeting the needs and aspirations
afits sharshaolders and other stake shareholders in the
Company. As part of the Company's efforts to
strengthen Corporate Governance, the Board of
Directors has formulated a Risk Management Policy,
which puts in place a risk management structure with
clear definition of roles and responsibilities, as well asa
risk portfolio invaolving a continuous process of risk
identification, risk assessment, control assessment and
risk monitoring, review and communication, The
Company aims o

Identify, assess and manage existing as well as new
risks in & planned and coordinated manner,

Increase the effectiveness of the Company's internal
and external repaorting structura.

Develop and foster & “risk” culture within the
organization that encourages ol staff ta identify risk
and associated opportunities and respond to them
with appropriate actions

ENVIROMNMENT AND SAFETY

Your Company is conscious of the importance of
environmentally clean and safe operations. Your
Company's poicy requires the conduct of all operations
i such manner so as to ensure safety of all concerned,
compliance of statutory and industrial requirements
for environment protection and conservation of natural
resources to the maximum possible,

Your company predominantly wses waste paper for
manufacturing its finished products, This gives
tremendous support to the emdronment by profecting
the forests, Besides, the Company belleves in
generating wealth out of waste, The Company
marufactures Bricks out of Fly Ash and Plastic sheets
ol of plastic waste,

SWOT ANALYSIS

Strength

Your company is operating paper and paper board
production tacility with installed capacity of 3,05,000
MTPA atthe said location sincelong and the Promaters
of the company have substantial experience of the
industry. They are well versed with variows aspects of
manufacturing and trading of the products, Asaresult,
your company will have advantage to hire and retain
competent staff and to manage transport of raw
material and finished goods due toits locationwhichis
wall connected to ports and airports.

Fusrther, vour company has well established marketing
network to sell the products proposed 1o be
manufactured through the ensuing as well as proposed
expansion plans.

Weakness

v Your Company refies predorminantly on waste-paper
for Ite manufacturing activities, Lack of domestic
irfrastructure for callection and segregation of wed
paper Is the reason for heawy reliance on imports.
Additionally, irmports also carry the risk of fluctuation
in foreign currency and freight ratas. Any untoward
ayration in these vanables could impact profitabilicy
ofthe comparny.

Opportunity
Market size of paper industry is expected to grow at
a CAGR of ~5.0% owver the period FY 2011-15, to
cross IMR 366 Bn. mark by the end of FY 2015,



PLACE

Increasimg use of paper boards in packaging.

With manufacturing of note book, the company is
venturing into manufacturing of stationery items
which will open new avenue for the company to
cater end market directly which has good potential
te grow,

Your company will join the league of few
established players manufacturing copler paper In
the coumntry.

Successful marketing of the same will help the
company to establish its brand name im corporate
sectorin the country,

Thireat

v Paper industry is very fragmented and presence of
nuembers of [ocal plavers creates stff competition in
the market, In segments like copier paper, the
company has to face competition from established
market players alsa,

v The Industry expenditure has been Increased
substantially in fast & - 3 years on account of
growding demard of the products. Howeever, it s
important to note that Industry Is oyclical In nature
and sudden increment In capacities can affect
demand growth negatively.

¥ Raw material - waste paper - prices are volatile in
nature and there is no mechanism available to
control the same.

INTERMAL CONTROL 5YSTEMS

Your Company bellieves that internal contral is a
necessary concomitant of the principle of govermance
that freedom of management should be exercised
welthin a framewaork of approgriate checks and balamces.
Your Company remalns committed to ensuring an
effective Internal control emdrcnment that provides
assurance on the efficlency of operations and security
af assets,

Well established and robust internal audit processes,
both at business and corporate levels, continuoushy
maonitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control environment across your Company and the
status of compliance with operating systems, internal
piodicies and regulatory requirements. In the networked
ITervironmentof your Company validation of IT security
continues to receive focused attention of the internal
audit team which includes IT specialists.

AHMEDABAD
ath MAY, 2013

The Internal Audit function consisting of professionally
qualified accountants, engineers and [T specialists. Thay
rewiew the guality of planning and execution of all
ongaing projects invalving significant expenditure to
ensura that project managernent controls are adequate
to yield 'value of money’

HUMAM RESOLURCES

The Company’s Innovative human resource
management strategles supported business in a
challenging econemic envirgnment. Strategic talent
acquisitbon and performance management are key o
ensure a diverse and compatency - driven workforce,

A wiorking environment where performance |s
rewarded: employess are respected and cpporunities
are made avallable torealize thelr patentlal In creating
a performance oriented culture. Several HR initiatives
have been starad to lmprove employes engagement
and organizational performance:

It conmtinued 1o invest in continuous leaming to
enhance the competencies of employees in the
technology domain and in processes to address
business demand, improve workforce productivity
and enhance hurman capital value.

To enhance employee engagement and (o work
towards employes satisfaction. In additian,
stabilization and revision of varous policies and
process improved operational excellence,

To identify talent and fast track employee
development, special emphasis was given 1o
Performance and Development Appraisal,

Many initiatives have been started to improve
inchusiveness of the arganization, to increase and 1o
facilitate fermale representation in business aneas,

CALUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Director’s Report & Management Discussion and
Anakysic Report included thersin may contain certain
statermnents, which are futuristic i nature. Such
staternents represent the intentions of the Management
and the efforts being put in by them to realize certain
goals. The success in realizing these goals depends on
various factors both internal and external. Theraefore,
the investors are requested to make their own
independent judgments by taking into account all
relevant factors before taking any investrment decision.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AJAY R GOEMEA
CHARMAN B MANAGING DIRECTOR
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REPUURT

(ORPORATE

INTRODLUCTION

The Securitiss and Exchange Board of India (SEBD ushered im
a formnial code of Corporate Governance through Clause 49
in the Listing Agreement executed by the Company with
Stock Exchanges. The Code has been periodically upgraded
to ensure the adoption of best corporate govermance
practices by the Corporates. This report sets out the details

of Corporate Governance systems and processes of the
Company, as set out in Clause 49 and some of the practices
fodlowed by the Company on corporate governance, for the
fimancial yearended 31" March, 201 3. The Company is in full
compliance with the Corporate Governance norms as
stipulated in Clause 44,

GOVERNANCE

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ABOUT CORFORATE
GOVERMAMCE:

The company believes that good corporate governance
is the key which inspires and strengthens investor's
confidemce by ensuring company's commitment fo
higher groveth and profits by adopting transparant
proceduwres and practices by arriving at decisions, based
on adequate informaticn.

sctive governance réeduces perceived risks
consequently reduces cost of capital, and also enables
the Board of Directors to take quick and sustained
decisions which improves the bottom line of the
Cormpany,



(b)

(d)

The company is committed to deliver reliable guality
produects and services to all its customers at competitive
costs thereby creating superior value for all-its
stakehodders and this can be achieved by practicing best

corporate governance standards.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & BOARD MEETINGS:

{a) COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Company has a balanced mixof executive and
non-executive independent Directors, The Board

presently consists of five Directors, out of which
ane is Chairman & Mamaging Director, one
Executive Director and three others are Non-
Executive Independent Directors. The Chairman
of the Board is an Executive Director and more
than half of the Board members are Independent
Directors. The Composition of the Board is in
compliance with the requirements of Clause
49¢1114) of the Listing &greement with the stock
exchanges. &ll Directors, except the Chairman &
Managing Director are liabde to retire by rotation.

5r. No. | Name of the Director Executive /Non-Executive Category

: Shri Ajay Goenka Executive Fromoter Director (CMD)
7 Shri Rahul Maheshwari Executive Executive Director

3, Shri Shashikant Thakar Mon-executive Incdependent Director
4 Shri Rajendra Patawari Mon-executive Independent Director
5. Shri Kantibhai Patel MNan-executive Independent Director
BOARD AGENDA:

Meetings are goverrwsd by a structured agenda, The Board members, in consultation with the Chairman, may Bring up any
matter far the consideration of the Board, Al major agenda items are backed by comprehensive background information
tor enable the Board to take informed decisions. Agenda papers are ciroulated generally seven working days prior to the

Board meeting.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS:

Driring the year under review, the Board of Directors met Mine timses on the following dates:
240523012 18062012 07082012
O809.2012 N0z 2 0,12.2012
07.02.2013 21.03.2013 30.03.2013

In terms of the provisions of the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, no director of the
Company is a member inmore than ten committees oracts as a Chairman in more than five committees of Public Limited

Companies, of which he is a director.

DETAILS OF ATTEMDAMCE OF DIRECTORS IN THE BOARD MEETING AND GEMERAL MEETING ALONG WITH OTHER
DIRECTORSHIP AMD MEMBERSHIF IN COMMITTEES:
The names and categornes of the directors on the board, thedr attendance at Board Meetings during the year and at the last
Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorships and Committee Memberships held by them in other
companies and their Shareholdings in the Company are given below =
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Hame of the | Director |Category Mo, of Mo, of | Attend- Humber of Detadls of Share-
Director Idantifica- Board Board ance in Directorship Commities higlding
tan Mestings | Mestings | last AGM In Oaher poditians
Mumbar herld attended public hald In pther
during companies public companies
Their &5 an &5 O
tenure In 31-03-2011 31-03-2013
1213 Chainman| Member | Chairman | Memiber
ship ship ship #hip Equity
Shares of
face value
of T
ench
e, Ajay Goenka | 00139512 [Chaiman & |9 9 e - 1123254
Maraging
Mrector
M, Rabvl DOZRITIN |Executive ] T Yes 100
Maheshowari Directar
M. Rajendra 02090538 (independent | # & os 1,700
Patawari Director
Me. Shashikant | 02887471 |independent | & & e
Thakar Devectar
P, Faarvbd e O2E2STREY |Independent | & & e k| -
Fatel Director
(e} INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD: 11. Transactions thatinvolve substantial payment
1. Review of annual operating plans of towards goodwill, brand eguity or intellectual
businesses, capital budgets and any updates, property,
1 Wﬂ‘mmhﬁumﬂf:m{:ﬂmmnyand 12, Eigﬂiﬂ{ﬁr“ Ial:":"ur pfﬂbdfmi and th-E'Ir
its operating divisions or business segments. proposed solutions,
3. Minutes of the meetings of Audit Committes 3 i‘?::iiiI;ES;LT;‘:;::?ET;E;?:::EU Chg
and ather Committees of the Board, &
14. Sale of material nature of investments,
4. The Information on recruitment and subsidiaries, assets, which is net in normal
rernuneration of Senlor Officers Just below dainea of butinets.
the Board level, including appointment or
removal of the Chief Executive Officer and 15. Quarterly details of forelgn exchange
the Company Secretary. exposures and the steps taken by
management 1o lmit the risks of adverse
5. Materially important show cause, demand, exchange rate movement,
0 SR T S e T O it 16. Mon-compliance of amy regulatoey, statutory
A. Fatal or EErlﬂus a,:.:;‘der“ g, dangeruus l.'ﬂ'llihflg rE'qu'ir‘ElTlEnE as weell as shareholdears
OCCUITENCES, senvice such as non-payment of dividend and
delays in hara transfer.
7. A terially significant effluent Ilusti
W?JET_I_IEE"H VR e P Thae Board of Directors is routinely presented with
' allinfarmation under the above heads whenewer
B. Any materlally relevant default in financial applicable and materially significant. These are
obligations to and by the Company, or submitted either as part of the agenda papers well
substantlal non-payment for goods sold by in advance of the Board meetings or are tabled in
yourCompany. the course of the Board meetings or are tabled
before the appropriate Committees of the Board.
9. Anyissue, which involves possible public or
product liability claims of substantial nature. {fl CODEOF CONDUCT:
TheC has adopted a Code of Conduct fo
10 Detalls of any joint venture or collaboration i BRI it j

Agresment.

its Board Members and Senicr Management
personnel and has posted on the website of the



Cormpany in terms of clause 49(0Hi} of the Listing
Agreement with Stock Exchanges. The Managing
Directors in terms of Clawse 49(00H) affirmed the
compliance of the Code of Conduct by the Board
Mermbers and Senior Management for the year
under review. A declaration ta this effect signed
by the Managing Directar, Mr Ajay Goenka forms
part of this repaort.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Your Company has constituted the following
cammitiess:-

{A) Audit Committes
{B] Remuneration Commitbes
{C) Shareholders'Anvestors’ Grievances Committee

The terms of reference of the Board Committees are
determined by the Board from time to time. Meetings
of each Board Committes are convened by the
respective Committes Chairman. Matters requiring the
Board’s attention/approwal, as emanating from the Boand
Committee meetings, are placed before the Board by
the respective Committee Chairman. The role and
composition of these Committess, including the
number of mestings held during the financal yearand
the related attendance, are provided belowe:

[A) ALDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has complled with the requirements
of Clause 49 |1 [Akaf the Listing Agreement of the
Stock Exchange and section 293A of the
Companies Act, 1956 as regards to the composition
af the Audit Committee. The members of the
committes are well versed in flnance matters,
accounts, Company Law and general busingss
practices, The quorum of the Audit Committes ks
twin members,

a] TERMS OF REFERENCE:

The primary functicn of the Audit Committes
is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling
its oversight responsibilities by reviewing the
financial reports and other financial
information provided by the Company to amy
Gowvernment Body or to the investors or the
public; the company's system of internal
controls regarding finance, accounting and
legal compliances that the Management and
the Board have established.

The terms of reference of the Audit
Committes include inter-alia the follewing:

Onversee the Company's financial reporting
process and the disclosure of [ts financlal
informatlen to ensure that the financlal

statement is correct, sufficient and
credible.

Recommending the appointment and
remaoval of the statutory and Internal
auditorsiwheraver required] and flixation
of audit fees and also approval for payment
for amy other servicas.

Reviewing with the management, the
guarterly, half-yearly and the annual
financial statements before submission 1o
tine Board, focwsing primarily on;

a. Amychanges Inaccounting policles and
practices,

b Major accounting entries based on the
exercise of judgement by the
management,

£, The gaing-concermn assurmgtion.
d. Compliance with accounting standards,

2. Compliance with Stock Exchange(s] and
other legal requirements concerning
financial statements.

f. Disclosure of any related party
transactions.

g. Any related party transactions, ie.
transacticns of the Company of material
nature, with Promoters or the
Management, or relatives etc. that may
hawve potential conflict with the interest
af the Company at large.

Reviewing, with the management, the
statutory and intermal auditors, the
adequacy and compliance of internal
controf systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal awdit
function, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit.

Discussions with internal auditors about
any significant finding and follow-up

therean.

Feviewing the findings of any Internal
investigations by the internal auditons into
matter where they are suspected of any
fraud or irregularity or a fallure of intermal
contrel systems of a material nature and
reporting the matter to the Board,

Discussions with statutony auditors about
the nature and scope of audit as well as
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have post-audit discussion to ascertain any
area of concern.

Reviewing the compamy's financial ard
risk-mansgement policies.

To took into the reasons for substantial
default in the payment o depositorns,
debenture halders, shareholders lin case

of non-payrnent of declared dividend) and
othercreditors,

Carrying out any other function as in
mentionaed in the terms of reference of
the Audit Committes,

b) COMPOSITION & ATTENDANCE OF
MEMBERS OF THE ALIDIT COMMITTEE:

Thee comstitution of the Audit Committes during the year was as under:-

5r. |[Mame of Director Category of Committee Ho. of Ho. of meetings
Mo Directarship Position Held | meetings held attended
1. [BheiShashikant M, Thakar | Independent Director | Chairman 4 4
2. |Shri Rajendra Patawarl Independent Director | Membar 4 2
3. |5hri Kantibhai Patel Independent Director Mermb.er 4 4
All the members of the Awdit Committee have a] REMUNERATION POLICY

financlal expertise and knowledae, The Company
Secretary, Srmi. Runel Bathl acts as the Secretary to
the Committes, At the invitation of the commites,
the Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditars, Head of
Finance Departrment attend the Audit Commities
Meatings vo answer and ¢larfy the queries raised
by the Committes,

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

Durirg the year under review, four meetings of
Audit Committes were held 24% May, 20012; 7
Ausgust, 200 2; 30™ Dctober, 200 2; andd 77 February,
20713 to consider, discuss and review the quarterly
results, annual accounts and other financial matters
to be placed before the Board for their 2pprowval,

REMUMERATION E COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
The company has constituted a Remuneration
Committea. The broad terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committes are as follows:

Review the perfformance of the Managing
Directar and the Executive Directors, after
considering the Company’s performance,

Recommend to the Board remuneration
imcluding salary, perquilsites and commission to
be pald to the Company's Managing Director
and Whale-time Directors,

Finalise the perquisites package of the
Managimg Director and Whole-time Directars
within the overall ceiling fixed by the Board.

Recommend (o the Board, retirerment bamefits
ey ke pravied 1 thae Managing Director and Whole-
time Directors under the Retirement Benefit
Guidelines adopted by the Board,

The Remuneration Committee recommends
the remuneration package for the Executive
Director’s of the Company, In determining the
remuneration, the Committee takes into
consideration the performance and contribution,
remuneration practices followed by Companles of
sirnilar size and stature amd the Industry standards.,

The Director’s compensation is based on the
appraisal system wherein the individual goals are
linked to the organizational goals. Executive
Director is paid, subject to the approval of the Board
and the Members of the Company in the General
Meeting and such other approvals, as may be
necessary, compensation as per the agreement
entered into between him and the Company.

The Company has a credible and transparent policy
Iin determining and accounting for the
rermnunesation of the Executive! Man - Executive
Directors. Thelr remuneration is determined In
accordance with the experience and nature of
responsibilities as well as industry standards. The
same s subject to the approval of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors and the
Membears,

The Board shall fram time to time provide requisite
guidelines’ scope of wiork for the Remuneration
Committes and the Committes will discharge such
other functions asare required under the provisions
of the Listing Agreement and the Companies Act,
1956,

At present the Mon-Executive Independent
Directors are belng pald only sitting fees for
attending the Board Auwdit Committes mestings.



b}

d}

a)

b}

COMPOSITION, MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Remuneration Committee consists of 3 Independent Directors as on 31,03 2013, During the year under review,
ane meeting of the remuneration committes was held on 30112012,

sr. [Mame of Director Category of Commitiee Mo, of No. of meetings
Mo Directorship Position Held | meetings held attended
1. |5hriKantibhai Patel Independent Cirector | Chairman 1 1
2. |ShaiRajendra Patawar Inclependent Dinectar | Member i 1
3. |5hri Shashikant Thakas Inclependent Dhrector Mernber 1 1
DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID TO THE DIRECTORS:
i# In Lacs)
Mame Deslgnation Particulars
Salary | Contribution To | Perguisites | Total Service | Period of
Provident Fund
shri Ajay Chairrman & 20,00 .09 1.16 91.28 5 yars 210808
Goenka Managing tea
Director 2000813
Shiri Rahwl Executive 2411 009 - 24,20 3vears 3000811
Mahashwari Director %]
290814

SITTING FEES PAID TO NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
During the year, the Company has paid the sitting fees to Non Executive Directors for attending Board & Committes
meeetings as under:

5. Mo, | Mame of Director Designation Shiting Feespald (7}
1 Shri Rajemdra Patawari Independent Director Rs. 17,0004
2 Shri Shashikant Thakar Inclependent Cirector Rs. 19,000/~
3 Shirt Kantibhal Patel Independent Director Rs. 19,000-

The Company currently does not have stock option scheme.

(C} SHAREHOLDERS'/INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

COMPOSITION & ATTENDANCE AT MEETING:
Ason 31* March, 2013, the Shareholders'finvestors’
Grievance Committee comprisaes the following
Directors:

5r. | Mame of Director Commitiee
Mo Pasition Held

1. | ShriKartikshai Patel Chairman
2. | ShriRahul Maheshwari Member
3. | Shri Ajay B Goenka Member

One Meeting of the Shareholders'fInvestors’
Grievance Committee was held on 25" March,
2013 which was attended by all the members of
the committes.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMITTEE:
The Committee books into redressing grievances
of Sharehalders pertaining to transfer of shares,

non recalpt of balance shest, non receipt of
dividend, dermnateralisation of shares, complaints
received from SEBI and the Stock Exchanges etc,

The Board of Directors has also designated the
power of approving transfer/transmission/issue of
duplicate share certificates to a Share Transfer
Committee.

NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS:
During the vear under review, the complaints
receives] are as unders

Opening Balance as on 01.04.2012 Ml
Complaints received during theyear ;4
Teatal N o

Complaints Redressed during the year @ 4
Closing Balamce a5 on 31,03.2013 : Nl
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4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
Details of Annual General Mestings:
The details about the location and time of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) in the last three yvears are as under:-

I' T4
aty
i

0]

Year AGM Location Date Time

20059-10 24" AWM 8" Floor, Avdhesh House, Thaltej, a™ July, 2010 10.30 a.m.
Adhmedabad - 380 054

2015-11 25™ A Ahmedabad Textiles Mills Association | 277 September, 1100 a.m.
[ATAA) Mall, Ashram Road, 2011
Ahmedabad - 380 009

2011-12 26t AGM Ahmedabad Textlles Mills Association | 27" September, 1100 a,m.
(AThA) Hall, Ashram Road, 1 ]
Ahmedabad - 380 009

Special Resolution passed in AGM in the last three vears:
Curing the last three years approvals of the shareholders were chtained by passing special resolutions as follows:

Year

Subject

Crate of AGM

200a-10

Increase inremuneration of Shri Ajay Goenka, Chalrman and Managing Director
of the Company.

Appointmant of Mrs. Nivati Agrawal, as Senior Vice President, a relative of Shri
Ajay Goenka, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, with effect from
1* &pril, 2010

Imcrease in remuneration of Mrs. Mivati Agrawal, Senior Vice President, with
effect from 16™ July, 2010,

To appoint Mrs. Sangeeta Goenka, as Senior Vice President, a relative of Shri Ajay
Goenka, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, w.ef. 297 BMay, 2010

To increase the remuneration of Mrs. Sangeeta Goenka, Senior Vice President
wief, 16™ July, 2010,

Approving, issuance and allotment of Equity Shares/Warrants andfor any
instrurnents convertible into Equity Shares whether optionally or otherwise, Global
Cepository Receipts (GORS) / Armerican Depository Receipts (ADR's) or Foreign
Currency Comvertible Bonds {(FCCB) (hereinafter referred to as'Securities’) foran
aggragate sum of Rs. 750 Crores.

Commencement of the business activities specified in Sub-clause na, (7) of
Clause N C) [Other objects] of the Mermorandum of Association

0807 2010

2010-11

To increase remuneration of Mrs, Miyatl Agrawal, Senlor Vice President, with
effect from 15t October, 2011,

Toincrease remuneration of Mrs. Sangeeta Goenka, Senior Vice President, with
effect from 1° Qctober, 2011

Approving, isseance and allotrent of Equity Shares/Warrants anddor any
instruments convertible into Equity Shares whether opticnally or otherwise,
Global Depository Receipts (GDR'] / American Depository Receipts (ADR's) or
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) (hereinafter referred to as
‘Securities] for an aggregate sum of ¥ 750 Crores,

200952011

2011-12

ML

2E09 202




(i} Detalls of Extra Ordinary General Meetings:
Dwsrimg the year under review, one Extra Ordinary

General Meating was held om 29 Movernbes, 2012,

{iv) Postal Ballot:
During the year under review, no Special Resolution
wias passed through postal ballor

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDCHT REPORTS:
A qualified practicing Company Secretary carmied out a
Share Capital Audit to reconciie the total admitted equity
share capital with the Mational Securities Depaository
Limited [M5DL} and the Central Depository Services
{India) Limited (CD5L) and the total issued and listed
equity share capital. The Audit report confirms that the
total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the
total mumbser of shares in physical form and total number
af dematerialized shares held with M30L and COSL

The Guarterly Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit
Reports was fumished 1o the Stack Exchanges on the
following dates:

For the quarter ended Furnished on

307 Juree, 2012 19° July, 2012
Al* September, 2012 30" October, 2012
31" December, 2012 22" January, 2013
31 March, 2013 19% April, 20013
DHSCLOSURES:

(a) Basisof Related Party Transactions

Mone af the transactions with any of the related
parties were in conflict with the interest of the
Company. Attention of members is drawn to the
disclosure of ransactions with the related parties
et out in the Standalone Financial Statements,
forming part af the Annual Repart, Transactions
entered into by the Company with the Related
Parties during the year were placed to the Audit
Committes for review. Adequate care was taken
toensure that potential conflict af interest did mot
harm the interest af the Company at large.

{b} Details of Non-Compliance by the Company
There were noinstances of non-compliance with
Stock Exchanges or SEBI regulations nor any
penalties or strictures have beenimposad on the
Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEEI ar amy
statutony awthority on any matter related to capital
miarkets during the last three years.

{c) Compllances
I Certificate from the Statutory Auditars
confirming compliance with all the conditions

(e}

of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreermnent of the
Stock Exchanges In India is annexed to the
Directors’ Report and forms part of the Annwal
Repart,

Il Dwetails of the Directors” seeking appointment/
reapipointment has been provided in the notice
of AGM. & brief resume, nature of expertise in
specific functional areas, names of companies
inwhich the person already halds directorship
and membership of committees of the Board
forms part of the Annual Report.

I, Cetails of shareholdess complaints received,
nurnber of shares rransferred during the year
gnd the time taken for processing these
tramsfers are furnished in the “Sharehalder)
Invesior Grievance Cammittes” section of this
Anmual Report

. The Guidelines/Accounting Standards laid
dioewn by the Institute of Chasterad Accountants
of India (ICAl) are duly complied by the
company in preparation and presentation of
financial statermeants,

Risk Management

The Company has adopted & management
frarmewark o kdentify risks and exposure 1o the
organization, o recommend risk mitigation and (o
sl Up a systerm to appraise the Board of Directors
of the Company about the risk assessment and
rninimization procedure and thelr periodic review.

Capital 1ssues

Druring the financial vear, the company has made
the preferential allotments of 20,00,000
convertible warrants of € 814+ each, convertible
inte $0,00,000 equity shares in one or more
tremches, within a maximum pericd of 18 months
from the date of allotment to one of the promioter
group company e M's Dropa Suppliers Private
Limited an 20" Decemnber, 201 2. The In-principle
approval for the same has been received from BSE
& MSE,

Conversion:

The company has sswed 000,000 equity shares
on conversion of 60,.00,000 convertible warrants
of T al/- each {Face Value of ¥ /- each) on 8%
September, 2012 and 15.00,000 equity shares on
conversion of 15,00, 000 convertible warrants out
of 9000000 convertible warrants of ¥ 815 each
[FaceMalue of ¥ 2/- each]on 30% March, 201 3. The
listireg & tradineg permission for the same have been
received from BSE & NSE.
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{fi Code for Prevention of Insider — Trading
Practices:
Pursuant to the requirements of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading] Regulations, 1992 as amended, the
Company has adopted a Code of Conduct far
prevention of Insider Trading, radified froom tirme
to time. This Code of Conduct ks applicable to all
Directors and such designated employees of the
Company who are expected to have access to
unpublished price sensitive information relating
to the company.

{g) Subsidiary Companies

The Company has two wholly cwned subsidiaries
but neither of thern are material - non listed within
the meaning of the explanation given in
Explanation 1 of Clause 4311} of the Listing
Agresment with the Stock Exchanges, The Audit
Committes reviews the fimancial statements and,
i particular, the investments made by the unlisted
subsidiary companies, However in the Board
Meeting held on 9 May, 2013, the Company has
taken necessary steps for disinvestment of the
equity shareholding of the company in M/s
Rainbow Infrabuild Private Limited (the whally
awrsed subsidiary] at fair market value as the box
board project will be set up in M/s Rainbow Papers
Limited itself, instead of the subsidiary.

{h) Whistle Blower Policy

The Compamy seeks to maintain the highast ethical
and business standards in the course of its business
and has put in place mechanism of reporting illegal
or unethical behavior, the Directors, employees,
vendors or customers may report violations of the
lawes, rules, regulations or unethical conducting by
writing to the notified person. The report received
from employees will be reviewed by Audit
Committee. The Directors and Management
Personnel are obligated to maintain confidentiality
of such reporting and ensure that the Whistle
blowsers are not subjected to any discriminatony
practices. Mo person has been denied access to
the Audit Committee, Whistle BElower Policy s also
hosted on the website of the Company — wanw,
raimbowpapers.com

MAMAGING DIRECTOR CERTIFICATION:

A certificate duly signed by the Chairman & Managing
Director relating to financial staternents, internal controks
and internal controd systems fior financlal reporting as
per the format provided in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agresment was placed before the Board and was taken
an recard.

B. MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONTO SHAREHOLDERS:

The board believes that effective communication of
information |s an essentlal component of corporate
governance, The Company regularly Interacts with
shareholders through multiple channels of
cormrmunication such as results announcement, annwal
repart, medla releases, Companys webeite and specific
communlcations to Stock Exchanges, where the
Company’s shares are listed.

(21 CQuarterly/HalfYearly Results:
The guarterky and annual results were published in
the English and regional newspapers, Thase are
net sent individually o the shareholders,

(bl Newspapers wherein results are normally
published:
The results are normally published in English
newspapers viz. "Economic Times™ and "Busimess
Standard” ard Regicnal Newspaper viz. Jai Hind.

(dl Webskte:

The Company has in place a website addressed as
wynw.rainbowpapers.com. This website contalns
the basic informaticn about the Company ..
detalls of its business, financial informaticn,
chareholding pattern, compliance with corporate
governance, contact information of the designated
afficials of the Company who are responsible for
assisting and kandling investor grievances, such
ather details as may be required under clause 54
of the Listing Agreement. The Company ensures
that the contents of this wehsite are periodically
updated. In addition, the Company makes use of
this website for publishing official news releases
and presentations, If any, made to Institutional
investors/analysts.

The Company has designated the following e-mail
I namety imvestorelationseranbowpapers Com
far the purpose of registering complaints, if any,
by the investors and expeditious redressal of their
grievances,

(el MNEAPS&BSEHELPDESK:
The Company files the quartery results in the MSE
Electronic Application Processing Systerm (MEAPS)
and B5E Helpdesk. The quarterly results of the
Company are also available on the website of BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited wiz. wwwbseindia.com. and

wyawnselndia.com. respectively,

(f} Reminder to Investors: Reminders for unpaid
dlividend are sent o the sharehold ers a8 per reconds,



8. ADDNTHOMAL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS:

2)

3)

7

Annual General Meating:
The details of the 27" Annual General Maeting to
be held is as under-

Date  : 16" Septembeer, 2013
Day  : Monday
Time ;17,00 AM,

Venue @ Ahmedebad Textiles Mills Association
[ATMA) Hall, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad -380 009

Fnanclal Year: 1" &pril, 2013 to 31" March, 2014,

Financial Calendar (Tentative)
Quarter Tentatlve Dates of Boand
Meeting for (F.Y.2013-14)

1" Cruarter Results | Mid of Awgust, 2013

P Quarter Results | Mid of Novembaer, 2013

3 Cuarter Results | Mid of Febrsary, 2014

4" Cuarter Results | Mid of May, 2014

Listing on Stock Exchanges:
(A} Equity Shares

BSELimived.
Phiraze lesjeebhoy Tower,

Dalal Street, Foit,
rMumbal — 400 001,

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited,
Exchange Plaza, Plot Mo, O, G Block,
Bandra Kura Complex Bandra (East],
Mumbai — 400 051

Depository For GDRz:
a) Owverseas Depository for GDRs:

b} Domestic Custodian of GDRs

3} Book Oosure Date:
The Shares Transfer books and Register of Membiars
will rernain closed from Tuesday, 10" September,
2013 to Monday, 16" September, 2013 (both days
imclusive).

4} Dividend Payment Date:

The Dividend for the vear ended 31¥March, 2013
will be paid to the members whose narmes will
appear on the Reglster of Members of the
Company on 10" September, 2013, after giving
effect toall valid transfer of shares in physical form
lodged with the Campany on of before b
September, 2013, at the end of business hours and
in respect of shares held in demat form, the
members whose names appear on the statement
of beneficial ownership funished by NSDL and
CD5Lat the end of business bours on %" September,
2013, Dividend will be paid within 30 days from
the date of approval by the memnbears at the Annual
General Meeting i.e. 16" September, 2013,

(8) Global Dapository Receipts (GDRs)

Luxembourg $tock Exchange
Soclere de la Bourse de Luxembourg,
11, av de la Parte-Meuve L-2327
Luxembeourg.

The Bank of Mew York Mellon (Luxembourg], 5.A,
Wertign Bullding - Polaris,

-4 rue Eugéne Ruppert,

L-2453 Luxermbatrg.

Tel: (+352) 24 525 320

DES Bank Limited

Securities Services, 5™ Floor,
Fort House, 221, Dr. OUM. Road
Mumbai - 400 007, India.

Tel: (022) 6& 388 348

Stock Code

{A) Equity Shares
B5E Limited — Stock Code 523523
Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited - Stock Symbaol RAINBOWPAP
151N Mo. for Equity Shares IMEQ28D0T025




(B) Global Depository Recelpts (GDR's)
Luxernbowrg Stock Exchange - Stock Code

I51M Mo for GOR'S

LSTE08461073
USTS08461073

By *Share Prices Data:

Bormbay Stock Exchange Limited Mational Stock Exchange of Indla Limited
Maonth Frice Price Vaolume Price Price Volume
High Low (Mo. of High Low (M. of
{in7) {In7) Shares) {In 7} in?) Shares)
Apr-12 &0.50 44,70 13,1339 65925 65,00 12,68497
‘May-12 £B.00 63.00 | 608,406 92.00 61.50 510,116
Jun-12 85.00 T80 105715 84.90 7800 F20,014
Jul-12 8BTS &1.50 982,273 BG40 0,40 10,08,704
Aug-12 91.65 70,50 1734437 H9.40 F1.00 21,E1. 5
Sep-12 87.00 G620 F506.110 A4.60 G765 22.74.000
Det=12 8540 7330 5781534 8605 73,00 22,09.593
Nov-12 85,00 7B.00 1461175 §2.30 78,00 14,33,309
Dec-12 86.50 50.60 25,689,646 B6.30 0,00 2597 166
Jan-13 8520 7895 29,7682 B5.25 0,05 28,72,222
Feb-13 B4.30 o8l 12.71,505 R FE.O0 13,13 48%
Mar-13 8235 a0 13,54.300 B3.65 TE.05 6,22.538

* share price data is obtained from the websites of the respective stock exchanges,

e ] [ Hon =)
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) 3000 =
19000 = oo B8 o 0
el £ N 30
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i1+ 2L . o i i i A r . i
Apre Mg June el Ay Bape Dot Bow Do e Fate bl Apr- Map. A B Ay Sape Do M Dede i Febe B
3 R H} (=] L} 3 (=) [ L=} 13 L& L*] L= I"‘ |2 12 |2 |2 "E' 1& 12 '|E 3 .Ia "J
[ = SENSEX 4 FPL Share Prices | | —a—NFTY ——FAFL S Pace |
SEMSEX and RPL shares prices are based MIFTY and RPL shares prices are
on month end dasing rates. based on month end closing rates.

9} Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:
Entire Share Transfer work and dematerialization/
rematerialization work is handled by Registrar &
Share Transfer Agents, M, Sharepro Services (ndia)
Private Limited, Ahmedabad

subject to the decuments being valid and
camplete in all respects, The Share Transfer
Committee has delegated the authority for
approving transfer, ransmission among others
of the Company’s securities to the Managing
Directon’ Company Secretary, & summary of

a) Share Transfer System: transfer £ transmission of securities of the

Share transfers are processed and shara
certificates duby endorsed are returned within
a period of 21 days from the date of receipt,

Company so approved by the Managing
Director £ Chief Financial Officer / Company
Secretary is placed at the Committes meeting.



10)

The Caompany obtains from a Campany
Secretary in Practice half-yearly certificate of
compliznce with the share transfer formalities
as required under Clause 47(C) of the Listing
Agreement and files a copy of tha zaid
certificate with the Stock exchanges. As on 319
March, 2013, there are no pending share
transfers pertaining to the wear under review.

b) Transfer of unclaimed/unpaid dividend to

Investor Education and Protection
Fund{lEPF):

Pursuant to sections 2064 and 205C and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, all
unclaimed/unpaid dividend for the pericd of
saven yaars from the date they became due
for payment, in relation to the Company have
been transferred to IEPF established by the
Central Government. Na claim shall lie against
tha |EPF ar the Company for the amounts so
transferrad nor shall any payments be made in
respact of such claim.

Members whao have not yet encashed their
dividend warrantislpertaining to the Final
Dividend for the financial year 2005-06 and
anwards are requestad to make thair claims
without amy delay to the Compamny. It may be

noted that the unclaimed Final Dividend far
the Financial year 2005-06 declared on Juna
29, 3006 can be claimead by the sharehaolders
by October 15, 2013,

A separate comrnunication has been sent in
June, 201 3 tothe shareholders of the Cormpany
whi have niot encashed their dividend warrants
and which are not yet transferred to |EPF,
providing them details of the unencazhed
warrants and requesting them to comply with
the procedure for seeking payment of the
EAME,

The Company will accordingly be required to
transfer im the year 201 3, the dividend for the
year ended March 31, 2006 which hawve
remnained unclaimed / unpaid.

Correspondence regarding Change of
Address etc.

Shareholders are requestad to ensure that amy
correspondence for change of address, change
in Bank Mandates etc. should be signed by the
first named shareholder. Shareholders who hold
chares in dematerialized form should do
correspondence with the Depository
participant with whom they have opened
Damat Accounts,

Distribution of Holdings as on 31* March, 2013:
As on 31" March, 2013
M. of Shareholders Mo. of Shares

Category Total % Total %
Upto 2500 3445 9,07 A5GE606 1.81
2301 - 5000 =] 1.53 43078 0,23
SO0 1000 14 0.3 210200 a1
10001 - 15000 10 0.28 264222 013
150010 - 20000 6 217 219012 a1
20000 - 25000 7 0.20 331722 0.17
25001 - 50000 i1 0.31 B78956 0.45
20007 and above 18 1.06 1871533574 R
TOTAL 3586 100,00 197434600 1o, W
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11) Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on 31* March, 2013

redativas &
ARSOCIARS
A0%

and UTI — -'--
-

Category No of Shares held % of Share Holding
1) Promoters’ Holding:
i Imdian Promoters’ relatives S associates AEDSG450 3946
(incleding Body Corporates)
il Foreign Promsobers: —_ —
Sub Total (A) 38955450 19.45
2} MNon Promoters Holding:
i Mutual Furds and LTI 500 -
fi. Banks& Financial Institutions 5500000 5.57
Sub Total (B) 5500500 5.57
3) Others
i. Private Carporate Bodies 171944669 17.42
L Imdian Pullic 5206915 527
jii. MRIs/OCBs S Flls 3219041 3.27
Sub Total () 25620625 25.96
4} Shares held by Custodians and against which 2B63IT5 2901
Depository Receipts have been issued (GDRs)
sub Total (DY 28639725 29.01
Grand Total (A+B+C+0) 98717300 100.00
Banks & Financial
Irssiltans Incfian Fublic
= Corporate Bodas i
butual Furds MRS/ CICGES
. Fliis




12)

14)

16)

Dematerlalizations of shares and liquidity:

Az an 31" March, 201 3, 98 94% of the tatal Equity Shares
are held in demateralized form with Mational Securities
Depositony Led (MEOL) and Central Depositony Services
ilndia i Limdted (CDSL). The details of wehich is as under:-

Mode of Holding | Mo. of Shares | % of Holding

DEMAT QFa60395 98,94
 PHYSICAL 1047905 1.06

TOTAL QRT17300 100

Outstanding Global Depository Receipts (GDR's):
Owtstanding GORs for conversion into Equity Shares as
on 31" March, 2013 are 2,86,39,725 amounting to
29.01% of outstanding paid-up Capital of the Company.
Each GOR represents one underlying Equity Share.

Plant Location
1453, 1423 VILLAGE RAIPUR, TAL: KA,
DIST. MEHSARNA

15} Address for correspondence
a) Company:

5Smt. Runel Rathl, Company Secretary
Rainbow Papers Limited
&01, Avdhesh House,
O Shirl Gung Govind Gunedwara,
Larkhe-Gandhinagar Highaway,
Thalte], Ahmedabad-350 (54
Ph.Mos: [079] 26855714, J6B55718,
Fax Mo.: [079) 26855713,
amaib secrefarial@rainbowpapers.com

Website! wnw.rainbowpapers.com

b) Registrar & Share Transfer Agents :
Sharepro Services (Indla) Private Limited
A416-420, Devnandan Mall,

Crpp Sanyas Ashrarn,

Ellis Bridge Ahmedabad — 380 006,
Telephone Mos. : {079} 26582381 - 84
Fax M, S{079) 26582385
Ermall : shareprogshareprosendoes.com

MNORTH GUUJARAT

Other Information to the shareholders

2) Dividend History for the Last 10 years:
Financial Year Cividend Date Rate Financlal Year Dividend Date Rate
2011-12 270592012 20% 2006-07 21-09-2007 1%
2010-171 27-09-2011 20% 200506 26-079-2006 6%
2009-10 8-07-2010 20% 20044-05 29-09-2005 4%
2008-04 23-09-20059 6% 2003-04 200752004 5%
2007 -0 22-09-2008 16 2003-03 27-09-2003 o'

b} BankDetails
Shareholders holding shares in the physical form
are requested to natify/send the following details
to Sharepro Services (India) Private Limited to
facilitate batter servicing :-

€] National - Electronic Clearing Service (NECS)

Facility

The Company uses “Electronic Clearing Service”
{ECS) facility for remitting dividend to its

sharehaolders wherewver available,

g any change in their address'mandate’bank

details

Sharehclders are adwised that respective bank
detalls ard addresses be furnished by them or by
Crepositories to the Company, for shares held in
the physical form and in the dematearialised form
respectively, the same will be printed on their
dividendwarrants as a measure of protection against

fraudulent encashment.

In terms of a notification issued by the Reserve
Bank of India, with effect fram 1° Octaber, 2009,
the remittance of dividend through ECS s replaced
by “Mational Electronic Clearing Service” (NECS].
Banks have been instructed to mave 1o the NECS
platform., The sdvantages of NECS over ECS include
faster credit of remittance 1o the beneficiary's
account, coverage of more bank branches and ease
of operations,

MECS essentially operates on the new and uniqus
bank account mnumber, allotted by banks post
implementaticn of Core Banking Solutions [CBS)
for centralised processing of inward instructions
and efficiency in handling bulk transactions.
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To enable ramittance of dividend throwgh MECS,
members are requested to provide their new
account number alfotted to them by their
repsective banks aftar implementation of CBS. The
account number must be provided tothe Companiy
arits RTA in respect of shares held in phiysical form
and to the Depository Participants in respect of
shares habd in electronic form.

The SEBI vide its Circular dated 21% March, 2013
provided that companies making cash payments
taits investors shall use approved slectronic mode
of payment such as EC5 NECS, NEFT etc, To enakble
usage of electronic payment instruments,
cOmpanies are regquired to maintain reguisite bank
details of their investors:-

For Securities held in electronic form,
companiss shall seek relevant bank details from
the Depositories.

For Securitles held in physical form, companies
shall maintain updated bank details of its
investors.

Green Initiative

MCA has undertaken a "Green Initiative in the
Corporate Governance” by allowing paperless
compliances by the companies and ssued circulars
stating that service of notice/documents inclisding
annual reports can be sent by e-mail 1o its
members, The advantages of sending such
decuments in electronic mode are 1o;

Recaive cormmunecation prompthy:

Reduce paper consumgption and sawe trees;
Eliminate wastage of paper;

Avoid loss of document in postal transit; and

+ Savecosts on paper and on postage.

AHMEDABAD
gt MAY, 2013

b

Accordingly, the annual report for the year 201 2-
13, notice for the annual general meating atc. of
the Company are baing sent inalectronic mode to
such of the members of the Company whose
e-mail addresses ara registered with the Campanyy
DF and who have not opted to receive the same in

phiysical form.

To support this green initiative of the Government,
members are regquested to register their e-mail
addresses, with the DP's, in case shares are held in
dematerialized form and with the 5TA, in case the
shares are held inphysical form and alsa intimate
changes, if amy, in their registered e-mail addresses
tor the Company/DF's, from time to time,

Drespasitony Services

Shareholders may write (o the respective
Depository or to Sharepro Services {India) Private
Limited for guidance on depository services,
Adddress for correspandence with Depositories are
a5 follows:-

1) National Securities Depository Limited -
Trache Warkd, A Wing, 47 & 5™ Floors,
Kamala Mills Compound,
Lower Parel, Mumbai- 200013,
Telephane; (022) 2499 4200,
Facsimile; (D22) 2497 6351
E-miail: info@nsdl oo in
Website: www.nsdl.coin

2) Central Depository Services (India) Limited
= Phiraze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 177 Floor,
Dralal 5treet, Fort, Mumbai <200 001 .
Telephone: (022) 2272 3333
Facsimile: (022) 2272 3199
E-maitjinvestorsacdslindia.com
Website: www.cdslindia.com.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DNRECTORS

AJAY R GOEMKA
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR



CERTIFICATE BY MAMAGING DIRECTOR
W herebry certify that:

fal  We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the vear ended 319 March, 2013 and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief;

(i) thesestatements do not contain any materially untroe statement or amit any material fact or contain statemeamnts
that might be misleading;

fiil thesestatements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(bl Tothe bestof our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the vear which is fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct.

el We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controds for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectivenass of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any,
of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these defidencies.

(dl  Wefurther confirm that
[il  therewere nosignificant changesin internal control over financial reporting during the year;
fi) therewere nosignificant changes in accounting policies during the year and

fiii) therewere noinstances of significant fraud of which we are aware and the invalvement therein, of the management
or an employee havirg a significant role in the Company's internal control system owver financial reporting.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AHMEDABAD AJAY R GOENKA

PLACE
DATE : & MAY, 2013 CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR



AUDITORS CERTIFICATE OMN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER CLALISE 49 OF
THE LISTIMNG AGREEMENT.

To

The Members
Rainbow Papers Lim ibed

1.

We have reviewed the implementation of Corporate Governance by Rainbow Papers Ltd, ["the Company”} during the
vear ended 319 March, 201 3, with the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company, furnished tous for
ourreview and the report on Corporate Governance as approved by the Board of Directors,

The compliance of conditions on Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Jur examination was
limited to review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of
the conditions of the Corporate Governance. Itis meither an awdit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements
of the Comparny.

2. Wefurther state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectivensss with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

3. Westate that no major investor grievances are pending for period excesding one month against the Company as per the
records maintained by the Shareholders ¢ Investors Grievance Committes and certified by the Company.

4. Onthe basis of our review and according to the information and explanaticns provided to us, the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated In Clause 49 aof the Listing Agreementis) with the Stock Exchange have been complied with in
all aterial aspects by the Company,

ForTalati & Talati

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn Mo: 110758W

Place : Ahmedabad Arand Sharma
Date : 09/05/2013 {(Partner)

Membership No:129033
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ta
The Board of Directors of,
Rainbow Papers Limited.

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

‘We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Rainbow Papers Limited {the *Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as*the Growp”], which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, and
the consolidated Staterment of Profit and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the vear then ended, and a
surnmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibllity for the Consolidated Financial Staterments

Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consalidated financial perfosmance and consolidated cash flows of the Company In accordance
with accounting principles gensrally accepted in India incleding the &ccounting Standards referred toin sub-section (3C] of
section 211 ofthe Companies &ct, 1956 {"the &ct”). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance
af internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibllity

O responsibility s to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statement s based on our audit, We conducted our
awditin accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Instiute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we comiply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to abtain reasonable assurance about
whether the conselidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amownts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures sefected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial staterments, whether due to frawd or emar. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considiers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
staterments that give a true and fair view in order to design awdit procedures that are appropriate in the drcumstances, An audit
alsa includes evaluating the appropriate ness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by management, aswell as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur audit opinion.

Opinion

Invower opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on consideration of
the reparts of the ather auditors on the financial statements of the subsidiaries as noted belaw, the consalidated financial
statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally acceptedin India;

1a)  inthe case of the consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 201 3;

ib)  inthe case of the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit of the Group for the year ended on that date; and

i) in the case of the consalidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flaws for the vear ended on that date.

.
£



Other Matter

Wia did not awdit the financial statemenits of subsidiany viz. Rainbow Papers ILT, whose financial statements reflact total assets
(riet) of T 89081 F lacs as at March 31, 2013, total revenues of T 36,665.93 lacs and net cash inflows amownting to¥ 2352 lacs
far the year then ended. These financial staternents have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished
tous by the Managermeant, and our apinion is based solely on the repaorts of the ather auditors.

Ciur apinkamn is mof gualified in respect of this matter,

ForTalatl & Talati
Chartered Acoountants
Firm Regn Mo: 110758W

Flace : Ahmedabad Anand Sharma
Date : 05/05/2013 (Partner)
Membership No:1X5033
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH 2013

(¥ in Lacs)
Particulars Note As at Asat
Ml March 31,2013 March 31,2012
L EQLNTY AND LIABILITIES
(1} Shareholders’ Funds
(8] Share Capital 2 1974.35 182435
(B Reserves and Surpdus 3 40673.83 30269.449
(el Maorey received against share warrants 1518.75 15.00
44166.93 300884
(2} Mon-Current Liabilites
(al Long-term bomowings 4 874888 3462594
(b1 Deferred tax Habilities (Met) 5 3401.52 238785
lcl  Long term provisions & 15653 113.60
62307.33 3712739
(3} Current Liabilities
(al Short-term bormowings 7 1213693 1242932
(bl Trade payables a 10571.11 Fo18.01
[l Other current liabilities 4 15126.13 12322 41
(d] Short-term provisions 10 571.59 529.00
3840576 32299.14
Total 144880.02 10243537
L ASSETS
(1} Mon-current assets
fal Fixed assets
{Iy Tangibde assets 11 62800.35 F0964.44
(il Capital work-in-progress 12 35552 39 3855996
(B Meon-current investments 13 15,00 -
(] Longterm loans and advances 14 655480 338047
104962 54 F2924 87
(2] Cuwrrent assets
fal Inwventories 15 8108.57 820040
(k] Tradereceivables 16 2022696 a65r.80
(c] {Cashandbankbalances 17 1828.76 417095
id] Short-term loans and advances ia 975319 8481.35
35917.48 2951050
Total 144880.02 10243537
The accompanying motes are an integral part of
these financial statements. 1035

A5 per our separate report of even date attached.
For Talatl &Talati

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Feg Mo 110758W)

Anand Sharma
Partner
Mam. No. 129033

A abiad
May 9, 2013

For and om behalf of the Board of Directors

Ajay Goenka Chairman & Managing Director
Rahul Maheshwari Executive Director

Rajendra Patawari Diirector

Shashikant Thakar Director

Kantibhai Patel Director

Runel Rathi Company Secretary
Ahmedabad

May 9, 2013



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2013

_ ¥ Im Lacs)
Particulars Note For the For the
Mo year ended year ended
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
I Rewvenue from operations 20 91 548.69 6107764
Less ; Excise duty 1543.55 952,28
Revemue from operations (Met] o005, 14 all135,36
. Otherincome 21 585.31 22550
M. Total Revenue (1 4+1) 57045 GO350.86
Iy,  Ewpendes:
Cost of materials cansumed 22 2345981 218595,09
Purchase of stock-in-trade 38299.21 15189.77
B1769.02 IT0EL 86
Changes ininventories of finished goods,
wiotk-in-progress and stock-in-trade 23 106.84 (132892}
Ermployes benafii expense 24 T818.11 1673.24
Finance costs 15 3669.75 2911.85
Depreciation and amartization expenses 1 266232 257045
Cither expenies 26 1322892 1197032
IV, Total Expenses B3254.96 S4890.80
V. Profit before exceptional and
extraordinary iterns and tax (IH-1V] 731545 545006
V1. Priorperiod item 1635 4.
Wil Exceptional tems 27 (4.06) [B.47)
Vill. Profit before tax (V- ViI-¥l) FEFFS 5456.30
X, Taxexpensa:
Curment tax S48.27 35415
Lass: MAT credit antitlerment (748.15) (318.84)
Met current tax liability 200,11 54531
Deferred tax 1013.67 306,74
o Profic/(Loss) for the period VI 6114.00 4504.25
¥l Earnings per equity share:(Face value of ¥ 2 per share)
(Refer Mote Mo 33)
(1] Basc 5456 504
(2] Diluted 530 4,95
The accompranyincg rotes are an integral part of
these financial statemsents. IRER

As par our separate report of even date attached.

For Talatl & Talati

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Req No: 110758W)

Anand Sharma
Fartner
Meam. No. 129033

Ahmedabiad
May 9, 2013

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ajay Goenka Chairman & Managing Director
Rahul Maheshwari Executive Directaor

Rajendra Patawari Director

Shashikant Thakar Directar

Kantibhai Patel Director

Runel Rathi Company Secretary
Ahrmedabad

May 9, 2013
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31-3-2013

(T Im Lacs)
31-03-2013 31-03-2012
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before extra ordinary items 731549 545005
Adjustment Forn
Provision for wealth tax i 1 ] 0563
Depreciation & amortization expenses 266232 257045
Sumdry balances writtem off (0.81) [3.48)
Finamce costs J559.75 2857 A5
Loss/{Profit) on Sale of Assets (2.54) FB.0B
Effect of exchange rate chamge 55.21 6817
Operating profit befare working capital changes 13699.13 1096977
Adjustment For
Imcrease fdecrease] in trade payables 3553.10 251638
Increase fdecrease] in current liabilities and provisions 1795656 39876
(Increasa) fdecrease ininventories 9182 L 3240.49)
(Increase) fdecrease in trade receivables (11565.16) (3778.46)
Cash generated from operating activities 5954.56 686595
Met prior year adjustrment on account of subsidiaries - [0.05)
Drirect tax paid (55719 (766.52)
Cash flow before extra-ordinary items 5397.37 6095.38
Extra-ordinary lems:
Excess provision wrltten back #06 BAar
Prior period expenses/income 16.35 [4.71)
MNet cash flow from operating activities E417.78 £103.14
B. Cashflow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets | inchuding capital work in progress) (3178207} (18571.73)
Sales of fixed assets 4N 73.60
Moverment in boans & advances (4089.35) 12011.22)
Investmients in subsidiaries/ather investrment (15.00)
Imterest incame 168.14 19764

Met cash flow from Investing activities (35714.08) (20311.71)




[T im Lacs)

€. Cashflow from financing activities

Pracesds from long term borrawings

Repayment of long term borrowings

Short tenm bosrowings (net)

Procesads fram |ssweconversion of warrants
Re-payvment of Share application miomnsy

lsseee of share warrants

Interest paid

Dividend paid {including dividend distribution tax)

MNet cash flow from financing activitles

MNet change in cash & cash aquivalents{a+bc)
Opening balance - cash and cash equivalent
Closing balance - cash and cash equivalent

Mote:
1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Balamce with Banks :
- In Collection accounts
- In Current accounts
- In EEFL acoounts
- Deposits with forekgn bank
Cashon hand
Other bank balances;
- In Dividend Accounts
- InMargin Money
Total
2

31-03-2013 3-03-2012
aggam 23254 82
(1312589 (1500741}
103258 532023
4875.00 -

= (575,00}

B03.75 915,000
(3837.89) (2767.82)
(405.45]) 123449
2ra54.11 1072533
(2342.19) (3483.25)
417095 765420
1828.76 4170,95
3614 4983
3437 2356

- .45

- 3203449

31.85 B.13
13.40 1336
1713.00 87413
1828.76 417095

Cash & Cash Equivalents for the vear endad March 31, 2013 includes unrealised Galn f {Loss] of (T 76,38 Lacs) (PY (7
39146 Lacs)) om account of translation of Forelgn Currency Bank Balance.

As per our separate report of even date attached.
For Talatl & Talati

Chartered Accountants

(Firrm Feg Mo 110758W)

Anand Sharma
Fartner
Mem. Mo, 139033

Ahmedabad
May 9, 2013

For and om behalf of the Board of Cirectors

Ajay Goenka
Rahul Maheshwari
Rajendra Patawari
Shashikant Thakar
Kantibhai Patel
Runel Rathi

Ahrmedakaad
May 9, 2013
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Chairman & Managing Director
Executive Director

Director
Director
Director
Company Secretary
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Mote-1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1}

3}

4}

5

[
i
L

Principles of consolidation:

aj The Consolidated Finamcial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 27 [AS 21)
on “Consolidated Financial Statements”issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and on the basls
of separate audited Financial Statements of Rainbow Paper Limited and its subsidiaries.

by  The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

(il The Financial Staterments of the Subsidiaries are combined on a fine-by-line basis by adding together the book
values of like items of assets, iabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and
intra-group ransactions resulting inunrealized profits orlosses in accordance with Accounting Standard-21
(a5 21)

(i} Incase of Foreign Subsidiaries, being non-integral faresgn operations, revenue items are consolidated at the
average rate prevailing during the vear, All assets and liabilivies are comverted at rates prevailing at the year
end, Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognized in “Exchange Fluctuation Translation
Reserye’,

iy Thedifference between the cost of imvestments bn the subsidiaries over the net assets at the e of acquisition
of the investment in the subsidiares (s recognized in the Financlal Statements as Goodwill or Capltal Resepve
as the case may be.

(I Asfar as possible the Consolidated Financial Staternents are prepared using uniform accounting policles far
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and necessany adjustmeants required for deviations
if any have been made in the Consolidated Financial Staternents,

The list of Subsidiary Companies included in consolidation with Rainbow Papers Limited and Rainbow's shareholding
thergin is as under:

Name of Subsidiary Mature of Country of Shareholding as | Shareholding as
relationship Incorporation at 31-03-2013 at 31-03-2012

Rainbow Infrabulld Private Limited, | [irect Control INDA 100% 100%

Ahmedabad

Ralnbow Papers ILT, Dubal Direct Control UWAE 100% 100%

Basis of Accounting:

The Financial 3tatements are prepaned a4 per historical cost comvention and in accordance with the Generally Accepred
Accounting Principles {GAAP] in India and the provisions of the Companies Act 1956 and the applicable Accounting
Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, All Income and Expenditures having
miaterial bearing on the Financial Statements are recognized on acorual basis,

Use of Estimates:

The presentation of the Financial Statements, in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting policies, require
the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of Assets and Liabilities, Revenues
and Expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimation and assumptions are based on management's
evaluation of relevant facts and drcumstances as on date of Financial Staterments. Difference between the actual results
and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized,

Revenue Recognition:

Sabes are stated net af rebate, trade discownt and inter-divisional transfers. It excludes Central Sales Tax and StateValue
Added Tax: With regard to sale of products, income s reparted when practically all risks and rights connected with the
awnership have been transferred to the buyers, This usually coours upon dispatch of the goods.

Export benefits representing Custorn Duty Rebate entitlernant against exports made under Duty Entitlernent Passbook
Scheme, Focus Market Scheme and Duty free Import Authorization Scheme are accounted for on accorual basis.

Interest on deposits is recognized on accrual basis.
Fixed Assets:

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, net of accurmulated depreclation, cenvat credit and
adjustrnents arising from exchange rate varlatkons relating to bomowings attrtbuted to fiked assets. Cost Includes incidental



n

9

10)

11)

axpensas capitalized from time to time on their due recognition, trial run expenses and interast attributable to the
project till the date of commidssioning.

Project under commissioning and other capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related
incidental pre-operative expenses, and attributed interest,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Fixed Assets are included under the head Long term leans and advances
shoven as Capltal advances.

impairment of Assets:

Thes carrying value of assets of the Company's cash generating units are reviewed forimpairment annually ormone often
if there is an indicaticn of decline in value, IFany indication of such impairment exists, the recoverable amount of those
assets are estirnated and impairment koss is recognized, if the carmving amount of those assets exconds their recoverabde
armount, The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in use, Value in use is arrived at by
discounting the estimated future cash flows to their present value based on appropriaote discount factor, Net selling price
is the estimated selling price inthe ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and to make the sale,

As per the assessment condiuctad by the Company at March 31, 201 3, there were no indications that the fixed assets
hiave suffered an Impalrment loss,

Inventorias:

Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Coal and Furmace Oil are valued at bower of cost or net realizable value after considering
thie credit of VAT and Cenvat, Stores & Spares are valued a1 cost. Inventories of Finished Goods and Waork in Progress ane
waloed at lower of cost or net realizable value, Stock intransit and Stock hving at third party Premises ane valued at cost,
Coat is determined on Frst-in-first-out basis, The cost of Work-in-progress and Finished goods incledes the cost of
raterial, labour, manufacturing and ather averheads,

Depreclation:

For Rainbow P Limited

01} O the additions made onoor after 1.4,2009 to Plant & Machinery on *Straight Line Method® on Pro-rata basis in
accordance with Section 205 (2i(b), at the rates specified in Schedule XV of the Companies Act 1956,

(2] Onall pther Fixed Assets on “Written Down Value Method® on pro-rata basks in accondance with the Section 205
[¥Ha), at the rates specified in Schedule XV of the Companies Act 1956,

Ecithéfollawi biickiarine:
Name of Subsidiary Basks of Depreciation
Rainbow Infrabuild Private Limited, Ahmedabad Witten Down Value Method at the rates specified in
Lchedule- XV,
Rainbow Papers ILT, Crubad, LLAE Using straight-Line method over their estimated useful
economic lives,
Central Excise Duty:

Excize Duty payable on finished goods is accounted for on dearance of goods. CEMNVAT Credit on Capital Goods and
inputs is accounted for on the date of actual receipt of the same, respectively.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

i} Initlal Recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency of the transaction.

iy  Conversion:

Forsign currency monetary ibems are reported using the closing rate, Mon- monetary [tems which are carried In
terms af historical cost denominated in a forelgn currency are reported wsing the exchange rate of the date of
transacthon: and non-monetary items which are carmied of falr value or other sirmilar valuaticn denominated In
faredgn currency are reparted using the exchange rates that existed when the valuees were denominated,
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13)

14)

15)

17)
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i} Exchange Difference:

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Companys monetary items of
rates different from those of which they were initially recorded during the vear, or reported in previows financial
statements, are recognized as income or expense in the year in which they arise.

W}  Forward Exchange Contracts not intended for trading:

The premium of discownt arising of the inception of foraard exchange contracts is amortized as expense or
income owver the life of the contract. Exchange difference on such contracts are recognized in the staterment of
profit and loss in the year imwhich the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arsing on cancellation or renewial
af forward exchange contract is recognized as income or as expense for the year,

Investments:

Irnvesoments are classified as Long Term & Current Investments, Long Tenm Investrments are valued at cost bess provision
for diminution other than tempaorary in value, if any, Current Investments are valued at Cost or Met Realizable Value
whichever is lower,

Borrowing Cost:

Barrowing costs are recognized in the period to which they relate, regardiess of how the funds have been utilized,
except where it relates to the financing of construction or development of assets requiring a substantial period of time
to prepare for their intended future use, Intenest on borrowings if any is capitalized up to the date when the asset is ready

for its intended use. The amount of interest capitalized for the period is determined by applying the interest rate
applicable o respective bormowings,

Earnings per Share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders
of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the yvear. Diluted earnings per
Share is caloulated by dividimg net profit attributable to equity shareholders (after adjustment for diluted earnings) by
awerage number of weighted equity shares cutstanding during the year.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event and
itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate
can be made, Provisions (excluding long term benefits) are not discounted to its present value and are determined
based on best estimated reguired to setthe the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance
sheetdate and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent labilities are not recognized but are disclosed
i the notes to the Financial Statements. & contingent asset is neither recognized nor disclosed,

Taxation :
(1) The Company and other Indian subsidiaries:
Provision for Current Tax is made as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred Tax resulting from "timing differences that are temporary in nature” between accounting and taxable
profit is accounted for, using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. The
deferred tax asset is recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable or virtual
certainty, as the case may be, that the asset will be realized in future.

(2] Foreign Companies:

Foralgn Companles recognize tax liabilities in accordance with the local laws. Further any Statuton reserves
required, if any, are established in accardance with the local laws,

Cash Flow Statement:

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the “indirect method” set out in Accounting Standard 3 (A5 3) on "Cash Flow
Statements” and presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company, Cash amd cash
equivalents presented in the Cash Flow Statements consist of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.



{a)

{b)

it in Lacsh

SHARE CAPITAL: As at As at
March 31,2013 March 21,2012

Authorised Capital:

17,50,00,000 Equity Shares of T 2/- each 3500.00 3500.00
{PY 17,50,00000 Equity Shares of T 2/~ sach)

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up Capital ;

B,67,17.300 Equity shares of T 2/ each fully paid 197435 182435

{PY 9.1 2,17, 300 Equity Shares of ¥ 27 each fully paid)

Ot af the above 501,77,275 of T 2 each (FY 5,11,77,275 Equity Shares
af ¥ 2each ) fully paid up represent Glabal Depositary Receipts (GORS)
Outstamding GORs far conversion into Equity Shares are 2,86,39,725

{PY 2.B8.89,715)

197435 182435
Reconciliation of number of shares :
Equity shares: As at March 31,2013 As at March 31, 2012
Mo of Amount Mo of Amount
Shares in Lacs Shares in Lacs
Shares outstanding a1 the beginning of the year 91,217,300 182435 B7. 217,300 1744,35
Add: Preferential issue of shares during the year - - 4,000,000 80.00
Al Conversion of Convertible Warrants
during the year 7,500,000 150.00 - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year Q8. 717,300 197435 9 217,300 1824.35

Terms/rights preferences and restrictions attached to securlties:

The campany has one class of equity shares having a par value of T 2 sach, Each share holder Is eligible for one vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the board of director is subject to the approval of share holders in the ensuing
Annual General meeting, except in case of Interim dividend. In the event of liguidation, the equlty share holders are
ellglble o recahve the remalning assets of the company after distribution of all preferential duss, in proportion to thelr
sharehaolding,

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the amount of per share dividend recognized for distribution to equity shareholders
was T 040 (FY.31 March 2012 ¥ 0.40)

Detalls of share holders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

Wame of share holders Mo of Shares %of Noof Shares % of

held holding e ld holding
Orlent Mewsprint Linmited 23377530 2368 17,377,520 19.05
Devkant Sythetics {India) Pyt Lid 3,742,945 k] 5.040,852 553
Rainkbow brndustrial Park Pyt Lid 6,812,000 691 6,819,000 748
Drupa Suppliers Pvt Limited® 6,653,000 674 5,153,000 365
Headway Capital Advisors Limited 5,598,197 567 4,100,000 449

* 15,00,000 equity shares allated an conversion of warrants on 30,03,.201 3, Listing &trading permission from exchanges
awaited,
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{d) Terms of securities convertible into equlty shares:

(&)

Convertible Warrants:

O December 200200 2 the company has alloted 90,000,000 convertible warrants on prefrential allotment basis to promoter
group company at a price of T &1/~ which shall be convertible into equity shares (at the sole option of warrant holderis))
atany time within a period of 18 months from the date of allotment of warrants, The lock-in of shares acquired by excerise
of the warrants shall be for the period of 2 years,

O 28th fanuary 2010 the Company had Issued and allotted Global Depository Receipts {G0Rs). The said GDRs are listed
aon at Euro MTF Market of Luxembung Stock Exchange and the funds ralsed have besnand are baing utilized to finance the
Expansion Plam and balance funds pending utilization have been placed as deposit with the Foreign Bank, The detalls of
funds activity during the yvear are as fiollowe:

T In Lacs)

2012-13 2011-12

Particulars Armount Armount
Opening Balance 320463 6,2309.65
Income earned on Unutilised Money 132 1961
Testal 320595 6259.26
Arnount Utilized for Expansion Projects and Working Capital Reguirernents 305,95 305463

Amount Unutilised & placed as deposited - 320463




% im Lacs)

3  RESERVES & SURPLUS: Asat As at
March 31,2013 March 312012
Caphal Reserve 4552 30,19
Add : Addition on consolidation = 1533
45.52 45.52
=ecurities Premiuwm
Balamce as per last acoounts 1491520 1255520
Add: Premium on issee of preferential shares 472500 2360000
1964020 1481520
Other Resarves ;
Ganeral Reserve
Balance & per last aocalints 202087 17B4.E7
Ackd ; Amount transferred fram surplus Balance in statement of Prafit & Loss L7000 4600
230087 203087
Forfeiture of Wamants 27.43 27.43
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 6138 6.16
2urplus In Statement of Profit & Loss
Balamce as perlast acoounts 1324431 934403
Legs - Dividend Pald on 60,000,000 Convertible Warrants
Dividend Paid 2400 16.00
Crividend Distribution tax pakd 389 258
(RY. 40000000 Equity Shanes)
1321641 F125.45
Praofit for the year 611400 460435
Less s Capital Reserve on consolidatian - 15.33
Less: Appropriations
Proposed dividend on Equity Shares for the year 39487 I64.87
Crividend distribution tax on Proposed dividend 67,13 £9.149
Tramsfer to General Resarve F10.00 2dei00
18598 .43 13324417
Tatal 4067383 3026949
RAINBOW PAPERS LTD | ; B a7



% im Lacs)

4  LOMGTERM BORROWINGS: Asat Asat
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
{A) Secured ;
a Frombanks:
- Fupesterm loans 4054188 a1e2.79
- Forelgn currency term loans 1139.47 1532113
- Wehicle lpans 10,59 254
b Fromothers
Rupee term loan 1805348 295236
Vehicls loans 2.54 415
(8] Unsecured :
& Term loan
From Others:
Financial instifuticns 3000.00 300000
b Deposits
Inter Corporate Deposits - 404,45
¢ Loans and advances from related parties FI95.00 2745.00
d  Other loans and advances
- From Banks - 203351
- Fromothers 4951.'!,!]1_"_ -
Total 58748.88 34625.94

(a) MNature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings

Term loan ;

Term Loan in Rupee Currency are securad by way of First hypothecation charge on Pari passu basis over the fixed assets
{both present and future to be acquired from the respactive term loan) of Paper and Coating Division situated atvillage:
Raijpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana. Second charge on paripasu basis on all current assets of the company. The loan is further
secured by parsonal guaramtee of Managing Director, Promoters and body corporates. Term Loan is carring Rate of
Interast{at present] from 13% to 14.50% p.a. repayable over a period of 5 to ¥ years,

Term Loan in Foreign currency are secured by way of First bwpothecation charge on Pari passu basis over the fixed assets
[both present and future te be acquired from the respective term loan) of Paper and Coating Division situated at village:
Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana, Second change on paripasy basis on all current assets of the company, The [oan is further
secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director, Promaters and body corporates. Term Loan is carring Rate of
Interestiat present) from LIBOR+ 7 to 8.5% repayable aver a pericd of 5 years,

Corporate Loan from Allahabad Bank secured by way of exclushve charge an sureey no 14391440 2 & 1441 padmeasuring
11288 sq. meter area togethers with bullding and fixed structure thereon situated at village: Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi,
Dist:Mehsana. The loan Is further secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director of the comparny Term Loan s
carring Rate of Interest (at present) 1.2.95% p.a. repayabis in 16 equal monthly installments having moratarowm perod
aof & manths.

Loan from financial institution is secured by way of exclusive charge on survey no 1524,1457-58,1483-84,1447/4/2
together with building and fixed structure thereon situated at village: Rajpur, Talwka: Kadi, DistMehsana. The [oan is furthier
secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director, promoter and promoter group company, Term Loanis carring Rate
of Interest {at present) 15% p.a. repayable im 4.2 equal monthly installments.

¥ehicle Loan;
Secured vehicle loan from banks are secured by hypothecation of wehicles and are repayable over a pericd of 3 years
carrying rate of interest & to 8% p.a. Further loan is guaranted by Managing Director of the company.

Secured wehicle loan from fimancial institutions are secured by hypothecation of vehicles and are repayable owver a period
of 3 years canrying rate of interest 9 to 11 pa.%.Further loan is guaranted by Managing Director of the company.



{b) The period and amount of Installments due are as under: (¥ im Lacs)
Financial Year Amount Financial Year Amount
2014-15 1159713 2018-19 345301
2015-18 1020409 2019-20 345300
2016-17 731026 2020-21 345317
2718 3626,00 2031-22 290700

Terms of repayment for unsecured borrowings
Loan from financial institution:

The company shall repay the loan im twe installments with the first installment of ¥ 100000 Lacs payable on 31.03.2015
and second instaliment of T 2000.00 Lacs payable on 31.03.2016 which carries Rate of Interest(at present) 15% p.a

The Company has phedged 11940000 Equity Shares of Face Value of § 2/- each, being held by one of its Promoter Group

company for availing Corporate Term Loan of § 3000000 Lacs,
Inter Corporate Deposits;

The company had taken interest free inter corporate deposit which is repayabde after a period of one year.

Loans and advances from related parties:

The company has taken Interest free advance from related parties which ks repayable after a period of one year.

Cther loam & adwvances includes trade deposite accepted tor a period more than ane year.

¥ ir Lacs)

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (MET): Asat As at

March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Deferred tax liabilitias
Fixed Asset: Impact of difference between tax depreciation 3418.01 241240
and depreciation charged for the financial reporting
Gross deferred tax lability 3418.01 241220
Deferred tax assets
Gratuity 1159 16.33
Leawve Emcashment 4, 5 B.OF
Gross deferred tax asset 16.45 2435
Net deferred tax liability 3401.52 23RT BS

Deferred Tax Liability calculated as above is excluding the assets pertaining to Power Generating Units, the incorme of
which being deductible u/'s 30 1A of The Income Tax Act 1961, As prescribed in AS13 & 451 5 regarding application of AS
22 in situation of “Tax Haliday " pericd urder Section 3014, where the timing difference arising in a vear is reversed during

Tax Holiday pericd itself, no Deferred Tax should be recognized

FAINBOW PAPERS D



(% im Lacs)

& LOWGTERM PROVISIONS: Asat Asat
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Provisions for employee benefits:
Provision for gratuity G205 G400
Provision for lzave encashment 6398 4560
Total 15693 113.60
[T in Lacs)
7 SHOART TERM BORRDWINGS: Az at As at
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
(A) Secured :
Loans repayble on demand:
From Banks:
a. Cash Credit Facility
- Rupes Leaan 791662 924427
- Foreign Currency Loan 48325 47337
b. Packing Credit Facility 5 44.20
(8] Unsecured ;
Other Loans and advances :
From Banks (Buyer's Credit) 3737.06 2613.33
From Banks (Packing credit facility) - 5465
Total 1213693 12429.72
—

Nature of security provided for short term borrowings:

Cash Credit Lirnit is secured by way of First hypothecation charge on Par passu basis over the current assets of the
cormpany, situated at 1423 paiki of village: Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana. Second charge on paripasu basis on all fixed
azeets, situated at survey no 1423 paiki of willage: Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana. The loan s further secured by
personal guarantes of Managing Director, Promsoter and a body corposate.

MNature of security provided for packing credit facility:

Packing Credit Limit was secured by way of First hypothecation charge on Pari passu basis over the current assets of the
comparny, situated at 1423 paiki of village: Bajpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana, Second charge on paripasu basis on all fixed
assets, situated an survey no 1423 paiki of village: Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana, The loan is further secured by
personal guarantes of Managing Director, Promater and a body corposate

¥ im Lacs)

B TRADE PAYABRLES: As at Asat
March 31,2013 March 31,2012

Acceptances 688115 4008.89

e to Micro Small & Medivm Enterprises 12506 17544

Far Goods, services & trade deposits 3553.90 2E33.68

Total 10571.11 7018.00




[* im Lacs)

g OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES: Asat As at
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Current maturities of long term debts 1097063 SEB7.05
Imterest accrued and due on bormowings 48838 22659
Unclaimed dividend* 13.40 13.36
Other payables:
- Statutory dues and unpaid expenses 664.52 478.95
- Advances fram customers 1673 13135
- Creditors for capital goods 2932 47 158531
Total 1512613 1232241
* Liability towards lrvestor Education and Protection Fund under Section 205 of The Companies Act, 1956 ( Mot Due as
on 31032013 £ 31.03.2013)
[T im Lacs)
10 SHORTTERM PROVISIONS: As at Asat
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Provision for employes benefits:
Provision for borus 64,26 5426
Prowisdon fior gratulty 41.41 3464
Pravision for leave encashment 315 243
Others:
Pravision for proposed dividend on eguity shares 394.87 364.87
Prowision fior dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend 67.13 £9.19
Provision for lncome tas 0 12.42
Provision forwealth tax 057 1.19
Total 5759 529.00
RAIMBOW PAPERS LTD i . B1
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% im Lacs)

12 CAPITALWORK IM PROGRESS COMPRISES: 31.03.2013 31.03.2012
Building, Plant & Machinery and Pre operative expenses (Pending Allocation) 35,59235 3B,559.96
Total A5,592.39 1B,559.94
= Costof Fixed Assets and pre-operative expenses, being technical matter, are capitalized or allocated to Capital weork

in progress on the basis of data certified by technical person & the management.

- Borrowing cost includes interest and other bank charges including the exchange difference arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded a3 an adjustment tointerest costs which are directly related
torthe acquisition & construction of a qualifying asset,

- Acvances ta Project suppliers are shown under Long term loans & advances incleded in Capital advances,

[T Im Lacs)

13 NOMCURRENT INVESTMEMNT: Asat Asat

March 31,2013 March 312012

1,50,000 Units [March 31,201 2: Mil] Face Value of ¥ 10 each of

Lmicn KBC Mutual Fund (At cost) 15.00

Total 15.00

Aggregate amount of unguoted investrment of ¥ 15.00 Lacs

¥ Im Lacs)

14 LONG-TERM LOANS & ADWVAMCES: Asat Asat
(Unsecured, considered good, unless othenwise stated) March 312013 March 312012
[a) Capital advances 654308 327145
(b) Security deposits 7.67 17.72
{c} Other boans & advances

Advances recoverable incashor kind® 4.05 91.30

Total G554.80 33B0.47

*Itincludes expenses which are amortised over a period of more than 12 months.

RAINBOW PAPERS LTD | : | 63



(% im Lacs)

15 INVENTORIES: Asat As at
(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value) March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Raw marerials;

- Paper ETERR: ] 335196
[Gioods in transit] 13522 217.50
- Chemicals 114502 113927
[Goods in transit] Rara F7.04
Work-In-progress B87.06 90343
Finished goods 28272 315.61
Steck in trade {In respect of goods acguired for trading) 56955 63713
Siores & spares 1037.67 72505
[Goods in transit] 146 081
Loose toals 402,04 3E1.68
Dihers:
Fuels, packing raterial & chemicals 38953 410,74
[Goods in transit] G265 10,08
(Above inventories taken, valued and certified by the management)
Total 8108.57 820040
[T im Lacs)

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES: Asat As at
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Dutstanding for a perlod exceeding & manths from the
date they are duwe for payment T8 108.42
Others 2014875 354938
Total 2022695 A557.E0

[*inm Lacs)

17 CASHANDBAMNK BALAMCES: Az at As at

March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Cash and cash equivalent :
a Balamcewith Banks:
In Collection accounts 3614 4983
- In Current accounts 3437 2356
In EEFC accounts - 045
- Deposits with foreign bank - 32103.49
b Cashonhand 31.85 6.13
¢ Other bank balances:
In Dividend Accounts 13.40 13.36
In Margin Money*® 1713.00 E¥413
Total 1828.76 4170.95

* Maraln Money deposits with a carring amownt of ¥ 171299 Lacs {31 March 2012 T B74.13 Lacs are glven as margin
agalnst Letter of Credit open with bank)



it im Lacs)

18 SHORT-TERM LOAMS AND ADVAMCES: Asat As at
Unsecured cansidesed good, unless othensise stated: March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Crther loans and advances:

- Adwvances recoverable incash or kind 87637 2840
- Advancestocreditors 4T75.74 5135495
- Balances with gowernment autharitias 2064 57 1735.26
- Adwvance tax and mat credit entitlement 181433 1457.04
- Advance fringe benefit tax Q.53 053
- Prepaid expenses 191.60 12367

Total 9753.19 3481.35

19 Contingent Habilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for): {¥ in Lacs)

Contingent llabilitles Asat Asat
March 31,2013 March 31,2012

Guarantees:
- Bank Guarantee 203.68 L2645
Other money for which company is contingently liable:

Additiaral Premivm an Land = 1B.78
- Export obfigation in respect of custos duty on

machirsery imparted on EPCG scheme 287594

Commitm ent:

Estimated amaount of contracts, remaining to be executed on capital accounts and not provided for T 141975 Lacs net of

advance (PY ¥ 5138.61 Lacs).

FAINBOW PA2ERS LT



% im Lacs)

20 REVEMWUE FROM OPERATIOMNS: Year ended Year ended
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Sale of products
Paper sales 3956565 3284485
Paper sales (export]} (including deemed exports) 924452 10090.73
Paper sales (trading) 4163222 1608878
Bricks salec 10595 7335
Plastic sheet sales 144.23 193.15
Sale of services
Jabwork 1637 36.55
Other Operating Revenue
Export incentlve 344.82 488,20
Fly ashsales 47.90 20,05
Miscellamenus waste sales 44703 34200
91548.659 61077 54
Less - Excise duty 1543.55 45228
Total 000514 6012536
(% in Lacs)
21 OTHER INCOME: Year ended Year ended
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Imterest Imceme from forslgn subsidiany 368.13 53.97
Commilsslon Ikcome 43,05 -
Profiton sale of Fixed Assets .97 0.4
Farsign exchange gain (Met) 151.16 171009
Total 56531 22550
% im Lacs)
22 COST OF MATERIALS COMSUMED: Year ended Year ended
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Opening Stock
Papirs 356946 2353.55
Chemicals 49.54 35.10
361900 238865
Add : Purchases
Papers 266652 227268
Chemicals E1435 41278
2679387 2551409
Less : Closing Stock
Papars IXETAE A569.44
Chemicals 62,50 4954
Total 23465.81 21E95.00




[* im Lacs)

23 CHAMGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, Year ended Year ended
WORK-AIN-PROGRESS AMD STOCK-IN-TRADE March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Opening Stock
Finished goods F15.481 242 54
Wark in progress 03,43 ZB4.71
Stock-in-trade 637,13 -
Total§ &) 1856.17 52725
Closing Stock
Finkshed goods 292712 31561
Work in progress BET.06 Q0343
Stock-in-trade 56955 63713
Total (B 174933 185617
Total (A-B) 10684 {1328.92)

(¥ in Lacs)

24 EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS EXPEMNSE: Year ended Year ended

March 31,2013 March 312012
Salary and Wages 170172 156363
Contribution to Provedent and other funds 8294 7360
Staff welfare expense 3345 3601
Total 1818.11 1673.24
(¥ im Lacs)
25 FINAMCE CO5TS: Year ended Year ended
March 31,2013 March 31,2012

(1] Interest expenses
{ai  Term loans #20.05 B4 B0
ibh  Working capltal facilites 168863 111811
ici  Others 482 14 13719
209082 2103.10
Less: Interest on Margin Money , Depaosits and othars® 168.14 14366
2H22.68 195544
(2] ther borrowing cost &7 07 &6R4.73
(3] Met losson foreign currency transactions®* = 287 68
Total 366975 2911.E5

"Interest expenses have been shown as net off interest received from trade parties, margin money and fixed depasits.

Hurplus of ¥ 151,16 Lacs being the impact of foreign exchange fluctuation on account of import, export, and foreign
currency working capital have been recognized in other income, Pursuant to Motification Mo 914 (E) dated 29,12.32011
read with circulas mo 2532012 daved 09,08, 201 2 issued by Minlsory of Corporate Affairs, company has capitalised foreign
currency gainosses on long term borrowings for purchase of long term monetany assets and due to this T 57,83 Lacs has
been capitalised as a part of fixed assets,

RAIMBIW PAPERS LTD
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(% im Lacs)

26 OTHER EXPEMNSES: Year ended Year ended
March 312013 March 31,2012
Consumption of stores & spare parts 26515 29901
Consumption of chemical IB16.65 364647
Consumption of poveer & fuel 520563 443298
Consurmption of packing materals 79505 53490
Paper pulping, cutting, packing and finishing expenses 44941 407.01
Bricks processing charges 44 50 7244
Plastic sheet processing charges 1710 753
Reoal mai :
Machimary 16485 114.22
Building 3574 12.63
Cithers 50,65 4450
23129 17133
Payment to auditors 10.86 9.54
Factary expenses 175.63 12261
Insurance 128.00 E9.Ed
Rent expense 37137 15.00
Rates and Taxes [Includes Wealth Tax T 1.2200] G4 18.79
[Previous year Wealth Tax ¥ 63456]
Exclse duty adjustment for stocks {net)* (1.00) 306
Advertisement, Stationery and Communication T0.85 7060
Legal, Consultancy and Professional Fees o781 103.57
Freight & forwarding outward expense [ export ) Go0.94 JBOL2S
Sales outward expenses 400,04 410,37
Selling costs 64.2.06 599.37
Miscellaneois expenses 15.11 B2E3
Donation 138 1.80
Travelling & conveyance 9981 B7.20
Total 13228592 1197932

* Excige duty adjustmient for stock under expenditure represents aggregate of excise duty Barme by the company and the
difference between excise duty on opening and closing stock of finished goods,

(¥ in Lacs)

27 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS: Year ended Year ended

March 31,2013 March 31,2012

Excess/iShart) provision of earlier years (4.06) g4

Total (4.06) (8.47)

28 PROPDSED DIVIDEND: H12-13 2011-12
Dividend proposed to be distributed to equity shareholders

- Total Amount (in Lacs) 3594.87 30487

- Per Share O 040



28] During the financial year 2011-12, the Company has acquired the 100% shares in bath the subsidiary company viz.
Rainbow Infrabuild Private Limited & Rainbow Papers, LT This baing the first year of consolidation.

30) Incase of Rainbow Papers ILT, Dubal, LLAE. the revenue and expenses transactions at the year end reflected in Profit &
Loss Account have been translated into Indian Rupees at an average of monthly exchange rate. The assets & labilities in
the Balance Sheet have been ranslated into Indian Rupees at the closing exchange rate at the year end. The resultant
translation exchange gain/loss has been disclosed as*Foreign Currency Translation Reserve”,

31) Based on the guiding principles given in Accounting Standard on ™ Segrment Reporting™(A5-17) isswed by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the Company operates mainly in manufacturing and processing of Paper products and all
other activities are incidental thereta, which have similar risk and return, accordingly, there are no separate reportable
Segment as far as PAimary Segment is concemed.

Information about Secondary Geographical Segments: {¥ in Lacs)
Particulars 2012-13 201112
Operating Revenue by Geographical Segment

India 43749.88 3471013
Outside bndia 46255.26 2541523
Addition to Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets

India 34479.56 442453
Crutsicle India - -
Carrying amount of Fixed Assets

India 98392.74 GO544.40
Cutside kndia - -

Motes;

11 Geographical Segments considered for disclosures are as iollows
- Operating revenue outside India includes Paper sales (incl. deemed Export), Export incentive, Exchange Fluctuation

{Met) & Foreign Subsidiary's sales,
- Presvious year's figures have been regrowped or rearrange whearever necessany,

21 Operating revenue Comprisas

% in Lacs)
Particulars 2012-13 201112
Sales B9165.39 £9274 94
{rther operating imcome 839.75 a50.42

32) Related Party Disclosure:

[a) List of Related Parties and Relationships:

i.  Concernwhere significant interest exists,

Hame of the Concern Mature of Relationship
Drient Messprint Lid Contral exists
Drupa Suppliers Pyt, Lid Control exists
Rainbow Industrial Park Pvt. Ltd Control exists
Migo Best Packs Pvt. Ltd Control exists
Windsor Paper Pvt. Ltd Control exists




ii. EeyManagement Personnel and Relatives.

1. Shri Ajay R Goenka Chairman & Managing Director
2, Shri Rahul J Maheswari Executive Director hwef 30.08.2017)
3, &mt Sangeeta A Goenka &r. Mice President (Executive Director till 28.05,.2010)
4,  Hmi, Miyatl Agrawal Lr. Vice Prasident
(b Disclosure of Related Party Transactions [ im Lacs)
Mature of Transaction Parties mentioned Key management
at a (i) above personnel
2012-13 2011-12 201213 2011-12
Lnsecured Loan taken 295,00 274500 - -
Office Rent Paid - - 68,75 600
Drrectons’ Remuneration - - 115.27 118.95
Calary E E 3296 3585
Interast income from subsidiares 302 .05 5731 - -
Issue of share [on conversion) 4875.00 - - -
Conveartibde Warrant issued 1518.75 915.00 - -
Disclosures of materlal transactions with related parties durng the year: ¥ Im Lacs)
5cNo.  Description Related Parties Amount
1 Office Rent Paid Shiri Ajay R Goenka 6.75
2 Directors’ Remuneration Shri Ajay R Goenka 91.16
Shiri Rahul | Maheshweari 241
3 Salary Smit. Sangeeata A. Goenka 24.04
Smt. Mivati Agrawal 28.848
4 Convertible Warrant issued Drupa Suppliers Pvt Limited 1518.75
5 Eqpuity share ssued on conversion of warrant Orient Mewsprint Limited 3660.00
Drupa Suppliers Pvi Limdted 1215.00
2] Unsecurad Loan taken Rainbow Industrial Park Pyt Led 2750000
Drupa Suppliers Pyt Limited 4545.00
23} Earnings per share;
Particulars 31.03.2013 | 31.03.2012
Met profit for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders T Lacs 6114.00 A604.25
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding for
Basic earning per shares Hurmbiers 595382 | B9SET0IT
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding for
Hluted eaming per shares Humbers FI02332 | 9301817
Basic earnings per share {face value of T 2 each) T 545 514
Diluted earnings per share (Face value of ¥ 7 each) ¥ 630 495




34) Derivative Instruments :

al  The Company does not have entered into any forsard contract to offset it foreign currency risks arising from the
amounts denaminated in currencies other than the Indian Bupes,

bl Forelgn currency exposure at the year end not hedged by dervative Instrurnents,

[AmEin Lacs)

201213 2011-12

Payables - UsD 60.54 55.55
Receivables - USD 18.64 11.58
Receivables - AED E74.56 19222
Payable - AED 456 58.79
Receivables - Eura 0.74 079
Bank Balance - U5sD . 62.63
Bank Balance - AED 022 032
Term Loans - LISD 4127 I93.78

35} Previous year's figures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary,

As per our separate report of even date attached.

For Talatl & Talati For and omn behalf of the Board of Directors
&?;ﬂmﬂfg E‘jﬂgt;;g;] Ajay Goenka Chairman & Managing Directar
’ Rahul Maheshwari Executive Director
Anand Sharma Rajendra Patawari Directar
Partrer Shashikant Thakar Drirectar
Merm. Mo, 129033 Kantibhai Patel Directar
Aol Runel Rathi Company Secretary
May 9, 2013 Ahmedabad
May 9, 2013
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TAND-ALONE

STATEMENTS




To the Members of
Rainbow Papers Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial staterments of RAINBOW PAPERS LIMITED {“the Company™), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatary information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Fnanclal Statements

Management s responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and falr view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in
sub-section (3C]) of section 211 of the Companles Act, 1956 (“the Act™), This responsibility includes the design, implermentation
and maintenance ofinternal contrel relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or erron

Auditor's Responsibility

Cwur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our awdit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing isswed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
finanicial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit insolves performing proceduras to ohtaln audit evidence about the amounts and discloswres in the financlal statements,
The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financlal statements, whether dus to fraud or emmor, Inmaking those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal comtrod
relevant bo the Company's preparaticn and falr presentation of the financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are approgriate in the circumstances. Anawdit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accountlng polickes used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as weall as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financlal statemeants,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opindon

In our apinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations ghven to us, the aforesald financial
statements give the information required by the Act bn the manmer so required and give a true and falrview in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

[a) Inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;
(b  Inthe case of the Statement of Prafit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
(€] Inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the vear ended on that date,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asreguired by the Companbes (Audivor's Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) lssued by the Central Government of India In
terms of sub-sectlon [(44) of sectlon 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a staternent on the matters specified In
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order,

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

4. Wehave cbtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
fior the purpese of cur audit;

b. Inouropinion proper books of account as required by lzw have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
axamination of those books;



The Balance Sheet, the Staternent of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Staternent dealt with by this Report are in
agreermant with the books of account;

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement comply with the
Accounting Standards referred toin subsection (3C) of section 211 of the Companias Act, 1958;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 200 3, and taken on recard by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a director in
terms of clause (g) of sub-section {1] of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956

For Talati & Talati
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No: 110758W

Ahmedabad Anand Sharma
09/05/2013 {(Partner)
Membership No:129033

ANNEXLURETD INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirernents” of our repart of even
date,)

{i)

[if}

fili]

In respect of its fixed assets:

{a) Thecompany is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including guantitative details and situation of

{b

o)

fixed assets on the basis of available information.

As explained to us, the Company has & phased program of physical verification of its fixed assets, which in our
cpinion, is reasonable, having regard 1o the size of the Company and nature of its business, During the year, the
company has physically verified some of the assets and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Im aur apinion, the Company has not disposed off a substantial part of its fixed assets during the year and the going
concern status of the Company is not affected.

In respect of its Inventories :

{a)

{bi

ic)

The inventaries have been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinkon, the frequency of
verification is reasonable,

Im our opinion and according tothe information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification
of invenitories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and
the nature of its business.

Oin the basis of ouwr exarmination of the records of the Company, we are of the opinion that the company is maintaining
proper records of inventores. As explained to us, there was no material discrepancies noticed on phiysical verification
of inventories as compared tothe book records.

In respect of the Loans, secured or unsecured, granted or taken by the Company to f from companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956

{a) The Company has not given any Loan during the year to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register

maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, Consequently, the requirements of Paragraph 4 (i} (b},
(c) & (d} of the Order are not applicable

]



{iv

{v)

{vil

{e} TheCompany has taken Loan from two partkes. In respact of the said loans, the maxdirmum amount cutstanding at any
tirne during the year was T 72495 Lacs and year-end balance is T 7295 Lacs.

{f] I our apinion and according to the Information and explanations given 1o us, the rate of interest and ather terms and
conditlons of the loans taken by the Company, are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

1g)  Imrespect of the said Loans and interest thereon, there are no overdue amownts.

In our opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control
procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its buskness with regard to purchass of
inventory, foeed assets and with regard to the sale of goods and services. During the course of our audit, we have mot
observed any continuing failure to correct major weaknasses in internal control system.

in respect of the contracts or arangements referred ta In Section 307 of the Companies Act, 1956

{a) Based on the audit procedures applied by us and according to the information and explanations provided by the
management, we are of the opinion that the transactions that need to be entered into the register maintained under
Section 301 have been 5o entered,

{b)  Imouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance of
contracts/arrangements entered in the Register maintained under section 301 of the Companies #ct, 1956 and
axceeding the value of ¥ 5,000,000 in respect of 2ach party during the year have been made at prices which appear
reasonable as per information availzble with the compamy.

In ouer opinion and according to the information and explanations given tows, the Company has not accepted amy deposit
fram the public and hence the provisions of Section 5BA and 58AA or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are
not applicable to the Company, Therefore, the provisions of Clause (vi) of paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable 1o
the Campany,

{wii} In cur opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business,

{uill) We have beoadly reviewsad the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companles (Cost Accoumnting

i)

{x)

{xi]

E

Records) Rules, 2011 prescribed by the Central Government under Section 20001 1d) of the Companies Act, 1956 and are
af the apdnbon that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been malntained We have, howsaver, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate of complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

fa)  Accordineg tothe records of the company, the company is regular in depaositing with appropriate autharities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Isvestor Education and Protection Fund, Emnpfoyee’s State Insurance, Incomse-
Tax, Sales-Tax, Wealth-Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to
it. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amears of statutony dues were outstanding
as at 31% March, 2013 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payabile.

b According to the records of the Company there are no dues of Value added Tax, Income-tax ales Tax, Wealth Tax,
Custarn Duty, Service Tax, Exclse Duty, Cess and ather Statutory duwes, eto which have not be=en deposited on account
af any dispate:

Thve Commprany does mot have any scoumulated [osses at the end af the Financial year, The campany bas nat incurred cash
losses during the financial year covened by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year,

Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion
that the company has mot defaulted in repayment of dues to the banks. The Company dioes not hawe debentures.



{xii} Inouropinkon and according to explanations given to us and based on the information available, no loans and advances
have bean granted by company on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other sacurities.

{xlil) The company 5 net a chit fund S nidhi £ mutual benefit fund/socety, Therefore, the provisions of clause {xiiil of paragraph
4 of the Order are not applicable to the company.

{xiv) The company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause [xiv] of paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xv} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans, taken by
others, from banks or financial institutions.

{xwi) The Company has raised new Term Loans during the year. The term loans outstanding at the beginning of the year and
those rised during the vear have been applied for the purposes fior which they were raise,

{wviiAccording to information and explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements and other
records of the company, we are of the opinion that funds raised on short term basis have not been used for long term
investments.,

{uwili} During the year the company has issued &0,00,000 Equity shares at a price of T &1 (FaceValue T 21 and 15,00,000 Equity
shares at a price of T B1 [Face Value ¥ 2) amounting to ¥ 4875 lacs as preferential allotment of the share to the company
coverad inthe register maintained u's 301 of the Companies Act, 1'956.The prices at which such shares has been issued
iz mot prajudicial to the interest of the company.

{xixd Durireg the year covered by our audit report, the Company has not issued any debentures, Accordingly, the provisions of
clause (xix} of paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable 1o the Company,

{xx} The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue during the year. However, we have verified the end use
of money initially raised through GDR issue, The same is disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements [Refer Mote Mo,
el

{uwi) Based on the audit procedures performed and representation obtained from management we report that, no case of
material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed ar reported for the year under awdit.

For Talati & Talati
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn Mo: 110758W

: Ahmedabad Anand Sharma
Date : 09052013 {Partner)
Membership No:1 29033
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BALANGE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH 2013

(¥ im Lacs)
Particulars Note As at Asat
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
L EQUATY AND LIABILITIES
(1} Shareholders” Funds
(8] ShareCapital 3 1974.35 1824.35
(k) Reserves and Surpdus 4 3670665 2893538
(€] Morey received against share warrants 1518.75 91500
40199.75 31167473
(2} Mon-Current Liabiities
(@l Long-term bomowings 5 S8748.88 3452594
(k) [eferred tax Habilities (Met) & 30152 238785
(c]  Long term provisions 7 15653 11360
5230733 37127349
(3} Current Liabilities
(al Short-term bomowings a4 1213693 1242972
(b) Trade payables 9 9590.88 5914.58
[l Other current liabilities id 15121.82 12153.04
(d] Short-term provisions 11 5737 L16.54
37421.00 3101388
Total 139928.08 ooE16.00
I ASSETS
(1} Mon-current assets
fal  Fixed assets
(i} Tangibke assets 12 6280035 30964 36
(il Capital work-In-progress 13 3558963 3855720
(b Mon-ourrent investments 14 56,90 41.20
(] Longterm loans and advances 15 6354.65 303833
104811.53 Fls21.79
(2} Current assets
(al Inventories 16 773307 Ted46.74
(k] Trade receivables i7 11653.80 S482.92
(c] {Cashandbankbalances 18 1800.66 416717
(dl Short-term loans and advances 19 1388902 98097 38
A51146.55 27119421
Tatal 139928.08 981600
The accompanying notes are an integral part of
these financial statements. 10036

As per gur separate report of even date attached.
For Talatl & Talati

Chartered Accountants

(Firmy Req Na: 110758\W)

Anand Sharma
Partner
Mem. Mo, 129033

Ahmedabad
May 9, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ajay Goenka Chairman & Managing Darector
Rahul Maheshwari Executive Director

Rajendra Patawari Director

Shashikant Thakar Director

Kantibhai Patel Director

Runel Rathi Company Secretary
Ahmedabad

My 9, 2013



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2013

g . : Lin Lacs)
Particulars Hote For the For the
Mo vear ended year ended
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
I.  Rewenue from operations 2 S4217.24 45987 .63
Less : Excise duty 154355 9n225
Revenue from operations (Met] L2673.69 4503534
. Otherincome 22 52226 22550
I Total Revenue (1 +1) 53195.95 4526084
. 3 st
Cost of materials consumed 23 23469.81 2189509
Purchase of stock-in-trade 4127.90 993,12
275871 228521
Changes ininventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 24 (71.32) (F75.26)
Emploves benefit expense 25 1791.97 165540
Finamce costs 26 317629 Z858.31
Depreciation and amortization expense 13 2662.31 257045
Diher expenses 27 13201.81 11943.51
M. Total Expenses 48458.77 4114122
V.  Profit before exceptional and
extraordinary iterns and tae (IH-1V] 473718 411962
VI Prior period item 1635 4.7
Vil Exceptional items 28 {4.06] [B.47)
VIl Profit before tai [V - VI-VII) 4749.47 4115.88
X, Taxexpense:
Current tax 4780 351.73
Less: MAT eredit entitlernast (748.15) (318.84}
MNet current tax liability 199.64 532.89
Deferred tax 1013.67 306,74
¥ Profit/[Loss) for the period (VI-1X) 35346.16 3276.25

¥l  Earnings per equity sharesFace value of € 2 per share)
[Refer Mobe Mo 33)

(1] Basic .74 1.66
(2) Diluted .64 152

The accompanying rotes are an integral part of

these financial statemanis. 11036

As per our separate report of even date attached, Far and om behalf of the Board of DMrectors

For Talat| & Talati Ajay Goenka Chairman & Managing Cirector

Chamered Accountants . .

(Firm Req No: 11075861 Rahul Maheshwari Executive Directar

. i ks : Rajendra Patawari Drirectar

Anand Sharma Shashikant Thakar Directar

Fartner Kantibhai Patel Directar

Mem. Mo, 129033 Runel Rathi Company Secretary

Ahmedabiad Ahmedakad

hay 9, 2013 May 9, 2013
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GASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31-3-2013

(T in Lacs)
31-03-2013 31-03-2012
A Cash Flowfrom Operating Activities
Met profit before extra ordinary items 4737.1B 4119.63
Adjustment For;
Pravision for wealth tax 012 0.63
Depreciation & amortization expenses 266231 2570.45
Sundry balances written off {0.81) (3.48)
Finance costs 3276.29 2804.93
Loss/[Profitl on Sale of Assets (1.94]) F8.08
Cperating profit before working capital changes 1DETL1S 957025
Adjustment For
Increase fdecrease] intrade payables 367630 1412.94
Increase fdecrease] in current liabilities and provisions 358857 22935
(Increase] Sdecrease in inventories [B86.34) (2686.83)
(Increase) Sdecreasein trade receivables (6210.88) 1603.58)
Cash generated from operating activitles B8408.20 793214
Diract tax paid (556.94) {766.52)
Cash flow before extra-ordinary itermns 7B51.26 7155.61
Extra-ordinary ltems:
Excess provision written back 406 8.47
Prior period expenses/income 16.35 [4.71)
MNet cash flow from operating activities 7BT1ET 7159.37
B. Cash flow from Investing activitles

Purchase of fixed assets | including capital work in progress) [31782.15) (18568.89)
Sales offixed assets 421 7360
Mowvement in loans & advances (6950.96) 13085040
Irvestments in subsidiarnes/otherinvestment {15.00) {41.50)
Sale of investment -
Dividend received -
Interest income 19206 250,77

MNet cash flow from investing activities (3856184 (21371.52)




[* im Lacs)

31-03-2013 31-03-2012
€. Cash flow from financing activities
Froceeds from long term bomowings IgR1201 2325482
Repayment of long term borrowings (1312529 (15007.41)
Short term borrowings (net) 103258 532922
Proceads fram issue/conversion of warrants 4875.00
Re-payment of Share application money : (a7 3000
Issue of share warmants 603,75 915,00
Interest pald {3468.35) 12768.02)
Dividend paid {including dividend distribution tas) [405.45) (423.49)
Net cash flow from financing activities 2832365 1072512
Net chamge In cash & cash equivalents(a+b+c) (2366.52) (3487.03)
Cpening balance - cash and cash equivalent 416717 T654.20
Closing balance - cash and cash equivalent 1800.66 416717
Mote:
1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Balamce with Banks
In Codlection accounts 1614 49,83
In Current accounts 2967 19.80
- InEEFC accounts = 45
- Deposits with foretgn bank - 3203489
Cashon hard 845 a.11
Other bank balances:
In Divickend Accounts 1340 1336
I Margin Maoney 1713.00 47413
Total 1800.66 416717

2 Cash & Cash Equivalents for the year ended March 31, 2013 indudes unrealised Gain / {Loss) of [T 7638 Lacs) (PY (T
391.46 Lacs))on account of translation of Foreign Currency Bank Balance.

As per our separate report of even date attached.
For Talatl & Talati

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg Mo: 110758W)

Anand Sharma
Partrer
Mem. No, 129033

Ahmedabad
May 9, 2013

Far and on behalfl of the Board of Directors

Ajay Goenka Chairman & Managing Cirector
Rahul Maheshwari Executive Directar

Rajendra Patawari Drirector

Shashikant Thakar Director

Kantibhai Patel Director

Runel Rathi Company Secretary
Ahrmedabod

May 9, 2013
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Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2013

1 1.  CORPORATE INFORMATION :
The company is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of paper. It uses various qualities of waste papers asits
ranw miaterial for manufacturing finished paper. The company offers wide range of paper including Writing &
printing paper, Newsprint paper, Duplex Board, Coated Paper, Colour Paper and Board, Crepe paper, Poster paper,
Cast coated paper &fluroscent paper,

During the financial year 2011-12 the company has acquired 100% equity shares in two companies viz, Rainbow
Papers ILT{Dubai) and Rainbow Infrabuild Pyt Lud,

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT:
The Financial 5tatements are prepared as per historical cost conventicn and in accordance with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAPR) in India, the provisions of the Companies Act 1955, and the applicable
Accounting Standards notified under the CompaniesiAccounting Standards) Bules, 2006, All Incomes and
Expenditures havirg material bearing on the Financial Statements are recognized on accrual basis.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES :

2 2.1 USEOQF ESTIMATES:
The presentation of the Financlal Statements, in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting policies,
reguire the management 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of Assets and
Liabilivies, Revenues and Expenses and discloswre of contingent labilities. Such estimation and assumptions are
based on management’s evaluation of relevant facts and ciroumstances as on date of Financial Statements,
[ifference betweesn the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period inwhich the results ane known
Smiaterialized.

2.2 REVENUE RECCRGHITION:
Sales are stated net of rebate and trade discouwnt. It excludes Central Sales Tax and State Value Added Tax. With
regard to sale of products, income is reported when practically all risks and rights connected with the ownership
have beentransferred to the buyers. This uswally occurs upon dispatch of the goods.

Export benefits representing Custem Duty Rebate entitlernent against expaorts made under Duty Entitherment
Passbook Scheme, Foous Market Scheme and Duty free Import Authorization Scheme are accounted for on
accrual basis,

Interest on deposits ks recognized on accrual basis,

2.3  FIXED AS5ETS:
Fiwed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, net of accumulated depreciation, cenvat credit and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations relating to borrowings attributed to fixed assets. Costincludes
incidental expenses capitalized from time to time on their due recognition, trial run expenses and interest
attributable to the project till the date of commissioning.

Project under commissioning and other capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost,
related incidental pre-operative expenses, and attributed interest.

Advances pald rowards the acgulsition of Fiked Assets are included under the head Long tenm loans and advances
chown as Capltal advances,

14 DEPRECATION:
The company has provided depreciation,

(1) Onthe additions made on or after 1,4.2009 ta Plant & Machinery an “Straight Line Method” on Pro-rata basis
in accordance with Section 205 (2Hb), at the rates specified in Schedule XV of the Companies Act 1956,

(2} Onall ather Fooed Azsete on “Written Down Value Method” on pro-rata basis in accordance with the Saction
205 (2)(a), at the rates spacified In Schedule X0V of the Companies Act 1956,

25 BORAOWING COST:
Borrowing costs are recognized in the period to which they relate, regardless of how the funds have been utilized,
exceptwhere it relates to the financing of construction or development of assets requiring a substantial period of



27

18

29

2.10

time to prepare for their intended future use. interest on borrowings if any is capitalized up tothe date when the
asset is ready for its intended use. The amount of interast capitalized for the period is determined by applying the
interest rate applicable ta respective bormowings.

INVESTMEMNTS:

Investments are classified as Long Term & Current Investments. Lomg Term Investments are valued at cost less
provision for diminution other than temporary in value, if any. Current Investments are valued at Cost or Net
Realizable Value whichewer is lower,

INVENTORIES:

Faw Materials, Packing Materials, Coal and Fumnace O are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value after
considering the credit of VAT and Cenvat. Stores & Spares are valued at cost. Inventories of Finished Goods and
Work in Progress are valued atlower of cost or net realizable value. Stock in transit and Stock lying at third party
Premises are valued ar cost, Cost is determined on First-in-first-out basis. The cost of Work-in-progress and
Finished goods includes the cost of material, labour, manufacturing and other overheads.

EXCISE DUTY AND CENVAT CREDIT:

Excise Duty payable on finished goods is accounted for on clearance of goods. CENVAT Credit on Capital Goods
and imputs is accounted for on the date of actual receipt of the same, respectively.

FOREIGM CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS:
i} Initial Recognition:

Fareigr currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reparting currency and the foreign currency of the transaction,

i} Conwversion:

Foraign currency manatary iterns are reported wusing the ¢losing rate. Non- monetany items which are camed
im tarmns of historical cost denominated In a foreign currency are reported wsing the exchange rate of the
date of transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried of falr value or other similar valuation
denarminated in foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were
denominatad.

i) Exchange Difference:

Exchange difference arising on the setthement of monetary items or on reparting Company’s monetary
items of rates different from those of which they were initially recorded during the year, or reparted in
previous financial statements, are recognized as incomse or expense inthe year inowhich they arise.

iv] Forward Exchange Contracts not intended for trading:

The premium or discount arisimg of the inception of forward exchange contracts 5 amortized as expense or
imcorme awer the life of the contract. Exchange difference on such contracts are recognized inthe statement
of profit and loss inthe year inwhich the exchange rates change. Any profitor loss arsing on cancellation or
renewal of foraard exchange contract is recognlzed as Income or as expense for the year,

EMPLOYEES RETIREMEMNT BEMEFITS:
(ah  Short Term

Short Term emplovee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount expected to be
paid cwer the period of services rendered by the emplovess to the company.

(bl Long Temm
The Company has both defined contribution and defined benefit plans, of which some have assets in
approved funds, These plans are financed by the Company in the case of defired contribution plans,
Dafined Contribution Plans

These are plans in which the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have any
legad orinformal obfigation to pay additional sums. These comprise of contributions to Employees Provident
Fund. The Company's Payments to the defined contributions plans are reported as expenses during the
period inwhich the employvee perform the services that the payment covers.

RAINDOW PWPERSLID | 0, o0l B3
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Cefined Benefit Flans

Expenses for defined benefit gratmity payment plans are calculated as atthe balance sheet date byindependent
actuaries in the manner that distribuies expense over the employvess working life. These commitments are
valued at the present value of the expected future payments, with consideration fior caloulated future salary
increases, using a discounted rate corresponding to the interest rate estimated by the actuary having regard
to the interest rate on Government Bonds with a remaining term Le. almost equivalent to the average
balance working pericd of employess,

Other Emploves Benefit

Compensated absences which accrue to employees and which can be carried to future periods but are
expected to be encashed or availed in twelve months immediately following the year end are reported as
expenses during the year in which the employees perform the services that the benefit converts and the
liabilities are reported at the undiscounted amount of the benefits after deducting amounts already paid.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS:

The carrying value of assets of the Company's cash generating units are reviewed for impairmsent annieally or more
often if there is an indication of decling in value, IF any indication of such impairment exists, the recoverable
amount of those assets are estimated and impairment boss is recognized, if the carrying amount of those assets
exceeds their recaverable amount, The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their vales
inuse, Valug in use is arrived at by discounting the estimated future cash flows to their present value based on
appropriste discaunt factos, Netselling price is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated cost of compdetion and 1o make the sale,

A peer the assessment conducted by the Company at March 31, 20013, there were no indications that the fixed
assets have suffered an impairment [oss,

TAXATION:

A provision for Current Tax has been made at the current fax rate based on assessable income or on the basis of
Sec. 11518 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (Minimum Alternative Tax], whichewver is higher,

Deferred Tax resulting from “timing differences that are temporary In nature® between accounting and taxable
profit Is accounted for, wsing the tax rates and laws that have been enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. The
deferred tax asset is recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable or virtual
certainty, as the case may be, that the asset will be realised in future,

EARNING PER SHARE:

Basic eaming per share is caloulated by dividing the net profit after tao for the year attributable to Equity Sharehoiders
of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earning
per Share is caloulated by dividing net profit attributable to equity shareholders (after adjustment for diluted
earnings! by average number of weighted equity shares cutstanding during the year.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT:

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the “Indirect Method” set out in Accounting Standard 3 on “Cash Flow
Statement”and presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company,

Cash and Cash equivalents presented in Cash Flow Statement consist of cash on hand and demand deposits with
banks.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS:

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
event and it is probable that an owtflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding long term benefits) are not discounted to its present value
and are determined based on best estimated required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are
rewiewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liakilities are
niot recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements. A contingent asset is neither recognized
nordisclosed.



{a)

(b}

it in Lacsh

SHARE CAPITAL : As at As at
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Authorised Capital:
17,50,00.000 Equity Shares of T 2/- each 3500.00 3500.00
(Y 17 50,000,000 Equity Shares of T 2/~ sach)
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up Capital ;
9,87,17.300 Equity shares of T 2/~ each fully paid 197435 182435
WY 9,12, 7,300 Equity Shares of ¥ 2/- each fully paid)
Ot of the above 511,779,275 of T 2 each (PY 5.11,77,275 Equity Shares
of T2 each | fully paid up represent Global Depositary Receipts (GORs)
Outstamding GORs far conversion into Equity Shares are 2,86,39,725
FY 2BBB9,715 )
197435 182435
Reconciliation of number of shares :
Equity shares: As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012
Mo of Amount Mo of Amount
Shares in Lacs Shares in Lacs
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 91,217,300 182435 A7, 217,300 1744,35
Add: Preferential issue of shares during the yvear - - 4,000,000 80.00
Acdd: Conversion af Convertible Warrants
during the year 7,500,000 150.00 - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 98717300 197435 9217300 1824.35
Terms/rights preferences and restrictions attached to securithes:

Equity Shares:

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of T 2 sach, Each share holder Is eligible for one vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the board of director is subject to the approval of share holders in the ensulng
Annual General meeating, except In case of Interm dividend. In the event of liguidation, the equilty share holders are
allgible to receive the remalning assets of the company after distribution of all preferential dues, in proportion to thelr
sharehalding,

During the year endsad 31 March 201 3, the amownt of per share dividend recognized tor distrbution to equity sharehaolders
was T 040 (PY.31 March 2012 Rs.040)

Detalls of share holders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

Mame of share holders Mo of Shares %of Noof Shares % of

held holding e ld holding
Orlent Mewsprint Limited 23377500 2368 17,377,520 19.05
Devkant Sythetics {india) Pyt Ltd 3,742,945 7e 5,040,852 553
Rainkow Industrial Park Pyt Lid 6,812,000 &9 6,819,000 748
Drupa Suppliers Pvt Limited® 6,653,000 674 5,153,000 363
Headway Capital Advisors Limited 5,598,197 567 4,100,100 4.49

*15,00,000 equity shares alloted on conversion of warrants on 30,03.201 3, Listing &trading permission from exchanges
aweaited,

RAIMBOW MPERSLID | . no) il B85



{d) Terms of securities convertible into equity shares:

(&)

Convert|ble Warrants:

O December 20, 201 2 the company has alloted 90,000,000 convertible warrants on prefrential allotment basis to promoter
group company at a price of T &1/~ which shall be convertible into equity shares (at the sole option of warrant holderis))
atany fime within a period of 18 months from the date of allotment of warrants, The lock-in of shares acquired by excerise
of the warrants shall be for the period of 3 years.

i 2eth January 2010 the Company had lssued and allotted Global Depository Receipts {GDRs). The said GDRs are listed
on at Ewra MTF Market of Luxembung Stock Exchange and the funds ralsed have been and ase being utilized to finance the
Expansion Plam and balance funds pending utilization have been placed as deposit with the Foreign Bank, The detalls of
funds activity during the yvear are as fiollow:

iT In Lacs)

2012-13 201112

Particulars Armount Armount
Opening Balance 320463 6,239.85
Income earmed on Unutilised Money 132 19.61
Tenal 3205.95 6259.26
Armocunt Utilised for Expansion Projects and Waorking Capital Requirernamnits 33205.95 3054.63

Amount Unutilised & placed as deposited - 320453




[* im Lacs)

4  RESERVES & SURPLUS : Asat Asat
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Caphtal Reserve 30.19 3019
Securities Premium
Balance as per last accounts 1491520 12555.20
fuddl: Prermium on isswe of preferential shares 471500 2360.00
1964020 1491520
Other Reserves ;
General Reserve
Balamce as per last accounts 203087 178487
Add : Amount transferred from surpius balance in statement of Profit & Loss 270,00 24600
230087 203087
Forfelture of Warrants 27.43 2743
Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss ;
Balamce as perlast accounts 1193169 934408
Less : Dividend Paid on 60,00,000 Convertible Warrants
Dividend Faid 24.00 16.00
Dividend Dastribution tax paid 189 2.58
(PY. 40,00,000 Equity Shares)
11903.80 9325.51
Prafit for the year 3536.16 3276.25
Less: Appraprigtions
Propased dividend on Equity Shares for the year 394.87 36487
Dividend distribution tax on Proposed dividend 67.13 53.19
Transfier to General Reserve 270,00 246.00
14707.96 11931.69
Total 3670665 2893538
]
RAINBIW PAPERS LTD | f | BT



% im Lacs)

LOMNG TERM BORROWINGS: As at As at
March 31,2013 March 31,2012

(Al Secured :
a Frombanks:
- Rupeeterm loans 40541.88 8162.79
- Forelgn currency term loans 1139.47 1532113
- Vehicle loans 10.54 254
b From othersiFinancial Instituionsk
Rupee term koan 180538 295236
Vehicle loans 2.54 415
(8] Unsecured :
& Term loan
From Orthers:
Firancial institutions 3000.00 300000
b Deposits
= Inter Corporane Deposits - 404,46
¢ Loans and advances from related partles 7295.00 2745.00
d  Other lpans and advances
- Fromm Banks - 203351
- Fromothers 495002 -
Total BBT48.8R 3462594

(a) Mature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings

Term loan ;

Term Loan in Rupse Currency are secured by way of First npothecation charge on Pari passu basis over the fized assets
(both present and future to be acquired from the respective term loan ] of Paper and Coating Division situated at village:
Raijpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana. Second charge on paripasu basis on all current assets of the company. The loam is further
secured by parsonal guarantee of Managing Director, Promoters and body corporates. Term Loan is carring Rate of
Interest(at present] from 13% to 14.50% p.a. repayable over a period of 5 to 7 years,

Term Loan in Foreign currency are secured by way of First hypothecation charge on Pari passu basis over the fixed assets
[both present and future to be acquired from the respective term loan) of Paper and Coating Division situated atvillage;
Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana, Second charge on paripasy basis on all current assets of the company. The [oan is further
secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director, Promoters and body corporates. Term Loan is carring Rate of
Interestiat present] from LIBORS 7 to 3.5% repayable over a period of 5 years.

Corporate Loan from Allahabad Bank secured byway of exclusive charge an survey nd 14391440 5 & 1441 padmeasuring
11288 sq. meter area together with building and fixed structure thereon situated at village: Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi,
Dist:Mehsana, The loan is further secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director of the company. Term Loan is
carring Rate of Interest [at present) 12.95% p.a, repayable in 16 equal monthly installments having moratariowmn period
of 6 manths.

Loan from financial institutsomn is secured by way of exclusive charge on survey no 1524, 1457-58,1483-84, 1447 /4/2
togetherwith building and fixed structure thereon situated at village: Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi, DistMehsama. The [oan is further
secured by personal guarantee of Managing Director, promoter and promoter group company. Term Loamn is carring Rate
of Interest {at present) 1 5% p.a. repavable in 42 equal monthly installments.

¥ehicle Loan:
Secured vehicle loan from banks are secured by hiypothecation of wehickes and are repayable over a period of 3 years
carrimg rate of interast 6 to 8% pa_Further loan s guaranted by Managing Director of the company.

Secured vehicle loan from fimandial institutions are secured by hypothecation of wehicles and are repayable over a period
of 3 years carring rate of interest 9to 11 p.a.%. Further loan is guaranted by Managing Director of the company.



it in Lacs)
{b) The period and amount of installments due are as under:

Financlal Yaar Amount Financlal Year Amount

2014-15 1158713 2018-19 34531

2015-16 10200 2019-20 3453.00

2016-17 781026 2020-21 345317

2017-18 36.26.00 2021-22 290700
€} Terms of repayment for unsecuned borrowings

Loan from financlal institution;

The company shall repay the loan intwo installments with the first installment of T 1000000 Lacs payable on 31.03.2015
and second installment of T 2000000 Lacs payable on 31.0%. 2016 which carries Rate of Interest(at present) 15% p.a.

The Company has phedged 11940000 Equity Shares of Face Value of ¥ 2/- each, being held by one of its Promaoter Group
company for availing Corporate Term Loan of § 3000.00 Lacs,

Inter Corporate Deposits:

The company had taken interest free inter corporate deposit which is repayabde after a period of one year.
Leans and advances from related parties:
The company has taken Interest free advance from related partles which is repayable after a perod of one year.

Other loan & advances includes trade deposite accepted for a period more than one year.

% im Lacs)
& DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES [MET): Asat As at
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Deferred tax llabilities
Fixed Asset: Impact of difference batween tax depreciation 3418.M 2412230
and depreciation charged for the financial reporting
Gross deferred tax liability 3418.01 2412.20
Deferred tax assets
Giratuity 11.59 16,33
Leave Encashment 4.90 B.O2
Gross deferred tax asset 16.49 2435
het deferred tax liability 3401.52 23E7.85

Deferred Tax Liability calculated as above is excluding the assets pertaining to Power Generating Units, the incorme of
which being deductible u's 30 1A of The Income Tax Act 1961, As prescribed in ASI3 & A5I 5 regarding application of AS
22 in situation of "Tax Haliday " pericd under Section 30 1A, where the timing difference arising in a vear is reversed during
Tax Haliday pericd itself, o Deferred Tax should be recognized

RAIMBOW MPERSLID |0 co) ol 89



% im Lacs)

7 LOWGTERM PROVISIONS: Asat Az at
March 31 2013 March 31,2012
Provisions for employee benefits:
Pronision for gratuity 92.95 64,00
Provision for beave encashment 63.98 4560
Total 156.93 113460
[T n Lacs)
B SHORT TERM BORROWINGS: Asat As at
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
(A Secured :
Loans repayble on demand:
From Banks:
a.  Cash Cradit Facility
Rupes Loan 791662 924427
- Foreign Currency Loan 48325 473,27
b.  Packing Credit Facility - 44.20
(B] Unsecured ;
Other Loans and advances :
From Banks (Buyer's Credit) 3737.06 261333
From Banks (Packing credit facility) - 5465
Total 1213693 12429.732

Mature of security provided for cash credit facility:

Cash Credit Limit is secured by way of First hypothecation charge on Parl passu basis over the current assets of the
cormpany, situated at 1423 paikl of village: Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana. Second charge on paripasu basks onall fixed
aceets, situated at survey no 1423 paiki of willage: Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana. The loan |5 further secured by
personal guarantes of Manaaging Director, Promoter and a body corposate,

Mature of security provided for packing credit facility:

Packing Credit Limit was secured by way of First hypathecation charge on Pari passu basis over the current assets of the
cormpany situated at 1423 paiki of village: Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana, Second charge on paripasu basis on all fixed
assets, situated an survey no 1423 paiki of village: Rajpur, Taluka: Kadi, Dist:Mehsana, The loan is further secured by
personal guarantes of Managing Directos, Promater and a body corporate

(¥ im Lacs)

TRADE PAYABLES: As at Az at
March 31,2013 March 31,2012

- Acceptances GRO1.15 A003.89
- Due to Micro Small & Mediwm Enterprises” 126,06 17544
- FarGoods, services & trade deposits 257367 173025
Total 9550.88 5914.58

* Based on the information/documents! parties identified by the company and 1o the extend information available/
gathered, informatian as required to be disclosed a5 per Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 have
breer ddeterminaed a5 follows;



2012-13 201112

Prircipal Armaunt Outstanding 126,05 175.44
Interest Due 253 227
Amount paid to suppliers beyond respective due dates -

Amaount af Interest due payable =

Amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 253 2.27

Whatever information the company could identify as above were possible at the year end only, and in view of this
according tothe company, it could notidentify payments bevond due date during the year and to make interest provisions
to that extent, due to numerpus transactions concluded during the year as per the agreed terms with the suppliers.
Honerever the company has made due interest provisions aver the requisite year end balances.

% im Lacs)
10 OTHER CLRRENT LIABILITIES: As at As at
March 31,2013 March 31,2012

Current maturities of long term debts 10970063 GERT .05

Interest accrued and due on bormowings 45838 22659

Unclaimed dividend® 13,40 1336

Other payables:

- Statutany dues and unpaid expenses 6021 309.58
Advances from custamers 76.73 131.25
Creditors for capital goods 2932.47 1585.21
Tatal 15121.82 12153.04

* Liability towards Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 205C of The Companies Act, 1956 (Mot Due as
on 31.03.2073 f 3103201 2}

(¥ im Lacs)
11 SHORT TERM PROAVISIONS: Asat Asat
March 31,2013 March 31,2012

Prowision for employee benefits:
Pronsion for bonus G425 5432
Provision for gratuity 41.41 3464
Pravision for leave encashment 314 243

Others:

Prowision for proposed dividend on eguity shares 394,87 36487
Provvision for dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend 67.13 59,19
Pravision for wealth tax 057 1.149
Total 57137 516,54
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[* im Lacs)

13 CAPITALWORK IM PROGRESS COMPRISES: 31.03.2013 31.03.2012
Building and Plant & Machinery , Pre operative expenses (Pending Allocation) 3558063 3I8,557.20
Total A5,589.63 iB.557.20

- Costof Fixed Assets and pre-operative expenses, being technical matter, are caplialized or allocated to Capital wark
In progress on the basis of data certified by technical person & the management,

- Borrowing cost imcludes interest and other bank charges including the exchange difference arisimg from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs which are directly refated

to the acquisition & construction of a qualifying asset.

= Advancesto Project suppliers are shown under Lorng term oans & advances included in Capital advances,

[T Im Lacs)
14 NONCURRENT INVESTMENT: Asat Asat
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Trade investments
Investment in equity Instruments
Ungquoted
Investment in whally owned subsidiaries:
al 10,000 Bquity Shares [March 31, 201 2: 10000) Face Valwe of T 10
each held in Ralnbow Infrabulld Private Limited (&t cost) 1.00 1.00
bj 300 Equity Shares [March 31, 201 2: 304] Face Value of AEC 1000 each
in Rainbow Papers ILT [At cost) 40.90 40490
Investment in Mutual Fund
1,50,000 Units (March 21,2002 Mil] Face Value of ¥ 10 each aof
Limiesr KBC Mutual Furd (AL cost) 15.00
Total 5690 41.90
Aggregate amount of unguoted investment of € 56,90 Lacs
% im Lacs)
15 LONG-TERM LOAMNS & ADVAMCES: Asat As at
(Unsecured, considered good, unless athenise stated) March 31,2013 March 31,2012
{a) Capital advances 5353.08 293045
{b) Security deposits 752 16.58
{c} Otherloans & advances
Advances recoverable in cash or kind® 405 0130
Total 536465 303833
“|1 includes expanses which are amortised aver a period of more than 12 months,
RAIMBOW PAPERSLTD : 193



(% im Lacs)

16 INVEMTORIES: Az at AL at
(valued at lenwer of cost or met realizable value] March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Raw materials:

- Paper 3131.54 335194
[Goods in transit] 13522 21750
- Chemicals 1145.02 113927
[Goods in transit] 53.72 704
Work-in-prograss 287.06 a03.43
Finished goods 25272 311561
Stockin trade (In respect of goods acquired for trading) 184.05 B347
Stores & spares 103767 F55.405
[Goods in transit] 1.46 091
Loose tools 402.04 18168
Qthers:
Fuels, packing material & chemicals 389.52 470,74
[Goods in transit] 6265 1008
(Abowe inventories taken, valued and certified by the management)
Total F733.07 THd6.74
(¥ i Lacs)

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES: As at As at
iUnsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Outstanding for a pericd exceeding & months from the
date they are due for payment 7821 108.42
Cthars 11615.5% 537450
Total 1169380 5482.92

(¥ in Larcs)

18 CASHAND BANK BALANCES: As at As at

March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Cash and cash equivalent ;
a Balamcewith Banks:
In Collection accounts 3614 4983
In Current accounts 2967 15,80
In EEFC acoounits = 045
Deposits with foreign bank - 320349
b Cashonhand B.45 6.11
¢ (hther bank balances:
In Diwidend Accounts 13.40 13.36
In Margim Momey® 171300 BlA13
Total 1800uES 4167.17

* Margin Money deposits with a carring amount of  1712.99 Lacs {31 March 2012; ¥ BF4,13 Lacs are given as margin
against Letter of Credit open with bank)



¥ im Lacs)

12 SHORT-TERM LOANS AMD ADWVAMNCES: As at As at
Unsecured considered good, unless othenwise stated: March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Loans and advances to related parties:

- Loans to subsidiaries® 494917 08 141601
Other loans and advances;

Advances recoverabbe in cash or kind 21.13 2892

Advances to creditors ATIS.TH 513595

Balances with government authorities 2084.57 173526

Advance tax and mat credit entitherment 181433 1457 0ud

Adwvance frimge benefit tax 0.53 0.53

Frepaid expenses 191.59 12367

Total 13889.02 gHOT IR

Disclosure under Clause 32 of Listing Agreement [T im Lacs)

*Subszidiary Company Cutstanding as at  Maximum Balance

March 31,2013 outstanding during

the year ended

March 31,2013

Ralmbone Infrabuild P Lid. 132.92 37281

Raimboner Papers JLT 4858.16 4858.16

(Previous Year outstanding in Rainbow Iinfrabuild Pyt. Lid. Is ¥ 354,87 Lacs and in Rainbow Papers JUT ¥ 1061.15 Lacs)

20 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for): (¥ im Lacs)
Contingent llabilitles Asat Asat
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Guarantees:
- BankGuarantes 803458 526.65
Other money for which company is contingently llable:
Additsanal Premivm an Land - 18.78
- Exportobligation in respect of custom duty on
machirery imported on EPCG scheme 287594

Commitment:

Eztimated amount of contracts, remaining to be executed on capital accounts and not provided for T 1419.75 Lacs net ot

advance (PY € 5138.61 Lacs).

RAINBOW PAPERS LTD |



(% im Lacs)

21 REVEMNUE FROM OPERATIOMNS: Year ended Year ended
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Sale of products
Papersales 3956565 3284465
Paper sales (export} (including deemed exports) 92d4 52 1009073
Paper sales [trading] 430077 Q9876
Bricks zales 105.95 7335
Plastic sheet sales 14423 19315
Sale of services
ok wark 1637 316.55
Other Operating Revenue
Expost incentive 344.82 4H8.29
Fly ash sales 47.90 2005
Miscellameous waste sales 44703 3432.09
5421724 4598762
Less : Excise duty 1543.55 95228
Total 52673.69 45035.34
(£ im Lacs)
22 OTHER INCOME: Year ended Year ended
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Interest Income from forelgn subsidiany 36813 5397
Profitan sale of Fixed Assets .97 044
Foreign exchangs gain (MNet) 151.16 171409
Total 52206 22550
[T im Lacs)
23 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED: Year ended Year ended
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Opening 5tock
Papars 569 46 235355
Chemicals 45 54 35.10
3619.00 238865
Add : Purchases
Papers 2266652 2271268
Chemicals 51435 412,76
2673387 2551409
Less : Closing Stock
Papers 3267.16 156946
Chemicals 62.90 45 54
Total 2346981 21895.09




[* im Lacs)

24 CHAMNGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, Year ended Year ended
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCKAN-TRADE March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Opening Stock
Finished goods 31541 24254
Waork in progress 903.43 28471
Stock-in-trade 8347 =
Total (A 1302.51 527.25
Closing Stock
Finished goods 292.71 315.61
Work In progress BET.06 Q0343
Stock-in-trade 194.05 E3.47
Tatal (B 137383 1302.517
Total (A-8) (7132) {775.26)

(¥ im Lacs)

2% EMFPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE: Year ended Year ended

March 31,2013 March 312012
Salary and Wages 1675.58 154579
Contribution to Provident and other funds 8294 73450
Staff welfare expense 33.45 36.01
Total 1791.97 1655.40
Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to defined contribution plan, recegnised as expense for the year are as under: [T im Lacs)
Particulars 2012-13 2011-12
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 2308 19,449
Employer's Contribution to Penskon Scheme 4900 4363
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund{For Key Perscnned} 011 005
Employer's Contribution to Pension Schemei{For Key Personnel) Lo . 013

Dafined Benafit Plan

The Company has adopted Accounting Standard 15 {AS-15} (Revised) "Emploves Benefits” which is mandatory from
srcounting periods starting from Dec 7, 2006, Accordingly, the Company has provided for gratuity and beave encashment
based an actuarial valuation done as per Projected Unit Credit Method,

[# im Lacs)
Gratulty (Funded) Leave Encashment
(Unfunded]}
20213 201112 213 201112
. Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of
Defined Benefit Obligation

Cpening defined benefit obligation 115.08 65,09 2203 273

Excess  Short provision - [0.38) -
Sendlcecost 816 2428 1388 1404
Interest cost .55 544 4.0 254
Actuarial (Gain] f Loss 5.49 24 849 7.1 i4.817
Benefits paid (5.5} {4,260 (2.80) (6.78)
Closing defined benefit abligation 153.77 11508 &7.13 5203
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Reconclliation of opening and closing balance of fair value of plan assets

(7 Im Lacs)
Gratuity (Funded)
2012-13 011-12
Dpanimg fairvalue of plan assets 16,44 17.37
Expected return 1.48 1.51
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) 1.44 (1.84)
Ernployer contribution 5.57 373
Benefits paid {5.51) i4.26)
Closing fair value af plan assets 1942 16.44
Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligation
[T im Lacs)
Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment
{Unfunded)
201213 201113 2012-13 H11-12
Fairvalue of plan assets 19.42 16.44 - -
Present value of abligation 153.77 115,08 67.13 52.03
Amount recognised in balance sheet 134,35 Q864 &7.13 52.03
Expense recognised during the year
{under the head "Employes beneflit expense” of Notes 257 (¥ in Lacs)
Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment
{Unfunded)
2012-13 201112 1213 201112
Service cost 28.16 24,28 13.88 14.04
Irterest cast 9.55 5.46 4.0 264
Expected return on plan assets (1.48) (1.57) 0.00 .00
Actuarial (Gaind f Loss .05 2636 701 14.81
Met cost included in ‘Employes Benefit Expense’ 41,28 54.59 24.90 31.50
Investment Details
% Invested
0121396 2011-12 (%)
Public sector securities 1% 7%
Balance with banks 3% 1%
Total 100% 100%
Actuarial Assumptions
Gratulty (Funded) Leave Encashment
(Unfunded)
201213 201112 1213 2011-12
fortality Table(LIC) 1594-96 1904-545 1994-95 1994-96
(Litimated  (Uldmaste)  (Uitimate]  (Ultirmate)
Discount rate [per annum) B.10% B.50% B8.10% B.50%
Expected rate of return on plam assets (per annum) 2,00 S -
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) S.00% G005 6.00% H.00%




ViI  Amount for the current and previous four perlods are as follows:-

30333 3032012 31033711 31032000 31.03.20400%
Rs.inlacs  Rs. in lacs Rs.inlacs  Rs.inlacs  Rs.inlacs

GratuitylFunded)

Cefined Benafit obligation 153737 11508 &5.040 B6.94 B1.58
Plam asset 19.42 16,44 17.31 18.69 3015
surplusdideficit) (134.35) (38,64} {47.78) (48.25) [57.43)
Experience adjustment on plan liability .77 27.18

Experience adjustment on plan assets (1.44) 147

Leave Encashment (Unfunded)

Drefined benefit obligation 67.13 52.03 7.1 14.06 17.51
Experience adjustment on plan liability 4.97 8.80

Vill. Expected Employer's contribution for the next financial year

On the basis of previows year's trend, company is expecting to contribute the same amount asin 2012-13 to the defined
contribution plan,

Forthe defined benafit plan company 15 not llable to contribute amy amount fior leave encashiment as the plan 5 unfunded,
Honwewes, forthe gratulty which s funded, company Is expecting to contribute such amount which can mitlgate its future
liaksility,

The estimate of rate of escalation in =alary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, senioeity, promaotion
and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The abowve information is certified by
the actuary.

(* Im Lacs)

26 FINANCE COSTS: Year ended Year ended
March 31,2013 March 31,2012

11)  Interest expenses

{a)  Term loans 820.05 B47.ED

bl Working capital facilities 1688.63 1118.11

{1 Oahaers 11414 137.E9
262283 210380

Less: Interest on Margin Money , Deposits and others® 192.06 196.80
2430.76 190700

(2] herborrowing cost 845.53 66423
(31 Metloss on foreign currency transactions™* = 28758
Total 3176.29 2858.91

"Interest expenses have been shown as net off interest received from trade parties, margin money and fixed deposits.

==hurplus of T 151,16 Lacs being the impact of foreign exchange luctuation on account of impart, export, and foneign
currency warking capital have been recagnized in other income, Pursuant to Notification Mo 914 (E) dated 29.12.2017
read with circular moe 257207 2 dated 09,08.201 2 ssued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, company has capitalised foreign
currenscy gainlosses on leng term borrawings for purchase of borg term rmonetary assets and dse to this £ 57,83 Lacs has
been capitalised as & part of fixed assets,
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[* im Lacs)

27 OTHER EXPEMNSES: Year ended Year ended
March 31,2013 March 31,2012
Consumption of stores & spare parts 26515 29901
Consumption of chemical IB16.65 364647
Consumption of power & fuel 520563 443298
Consumpticn of packing materials 9508 53490
Paper pulping, cutting, packing and finishing expenses 44941 407.01
Bricks processing charges 44 .50 7244
Plastic sheet processing charges 17.10 753
Maxchinery 16485 11422
Buidding 3574 1263
Crthers 50,656 4450
231.29 171.35
Payment to auditarsy 10.55 9.59
Factary expensss 175.63 12261
Insurance 128.00 B9.Bd
Rent expense 16.75 15.00
Rares and Taxes [Includes Wealth Tax T 12200 ] 644 894
[Previous year Wealth Tax ¥ 63456]
Exclse duty adjustment for stocks {net) (1.00) 5.06
Advertisement, Statkonery and Communication 68.50 6993
Legal, Consultancy and Professional Fees q7.58 BOLEA
Freight & forwarding outward expense [ expaort ) GO0 o JFBOL2S
Sales putward expenses 20004 41037
selling costs 641.18 599.37
Miscellansous expenses 13.50 9183
Donatian 138 1.80
Travelling & conveyance 98.50 BS.E7
Total 1320181 1194351

* Excise duty adjustmsent for stock under expenditure represents aggregate of exclse duty barme by the company and the
difference between excise duty on opening and closing stock of finished goads,

(¥ im Lacs)

# Payment to auditars March 31,2013 March 31,2012
A auditor:

Statutory auditor .00 .00

T ausditar 0.80 080

For taxation matters i ] 030

For company law matiers 0.90 0.3a

Far other services 145 1.24

10.55 .58

(¥ im Lacs)

28 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS: Year ended Year ended

March 31,2013 March 312012

Excess/iShort) provision of earlier years [4.08E) (8.4n

Total (4.06) (B.47)




29) PROPOSED DIVIDEND: 2012-13 2011-12
Dividend proposed 1o be distributed to equity shareholders
- Total Amount {in Lacs} 38487 354.87
- Per Share .40 0.40

30

nj

Balances of Unsecured Loans, Creditors, Debtors, Loans & Advances and other parties are subject to their confirmations
and reconciliation, due adjustment, If necessary, will be made on recelpt thereaf, However, the management does not
expect any materlal difference affecting the current years' financial statements.

Based on the guiding principles given in Accounting Standard on"Segment Reporting” [AS-17) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the Company operates mainly in manufacturing and processing of Paper products and all
other activities are incidental thereto, which have similar risk and return, accordingly, there are no separate reportable
Segment as far as Primary Segment is concerned.

Infarmation about Secondary Geographical Segments: ¥ im Lacs)
Partlculars 2012-13 2011-12
Operating Revenue by Gaographical Segment

India 43084.35 3355631
Dutside India 58934 1147502
Addition to Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets

India 3447855 442444
Dutsice India - -
Carnging amount of Fleed Assets

India QB389.98 6954156
Outside india - "

Motes:

1]

2]

32)

Geographical Segments considered for disclosures are as follows :
Crperating revenwe outside India includes Paper sales (imcl. deemed Export) and Export incentive.
Prenvicus year's figures have been regrouped or rearrange wherever necessary,

Ciperating revenue COMprises ¥ im Lacs)
Particulars 2012-13 2011-12
Lales S1833.94 44184.90
Diher pperating income B39.75 B50.43
Related Party Disclosure:

[a) List of Related Farties and Relationships:
I.  Concernwhers significant interest sdsts,

Name of the Concern Nature of Relationship
Orient Mewsprint Lid Contral exists
Drupa Suppliers Pet. Ltd Control exists
Rainbow Industrial Park Pui. Lid Control exists
Rainbows Infrabuild Pt Ltd Contral exists (Subsidiany Company}
Rainbow Paper JLT Control exists (Subsidiary Company}
Migo Best Packs Pvt, Lid Contral exists
Windsor Paper Pyt Ltd Control exiists

ii.  KeyManagement Personned and Relatives.
1. ShriAjay R Goenka Chalrrman & Managing Director
2. ShriRahul ) Maheswari Executive Director (weef 30.08.2011)
3. Smi Sangeeta A Goenka ar. Wice President (Executive Director till 28052010}
4, St Mivatl Agrawal 5, Vice President
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33)

34)

(b) Dizclosure of Related Party Transactions [T im Lacs)
Nature of Transaction Parties mentioned Key management
at a (i) above personne
2012-13 201112 201213 2011-12
Unzecured Loan taken T295.00 2745.00 = =
Ctfice Rent Paid - - 675 &.00
Directors’ Remunesation - - 115.27 118.95
Salary - - 52.96 35.65
Interest income from subsidiares 305 3T = =
Issue of share [on conversion) 4875 00 - - -
Loan given to subsidiaries(Net of repayment}]  3797.58 142646 = -
Convertibde Warrant issuad 1518.75% 915.00 - -
Disclosures of material transactions with related parties during the vear:
[T im Lacs)
S5tMo.  Description Related Parties Amount
1 Hfice Rent Paid Shiri Ajay R Goenka 6.75
2 Directors’ Remuneration Shirl Ajay R Goenka 91,16
Shirl Rahul | Maheshwari 241
E] Salary Lmt. Sangeeta A. Goenka 24,04
Smit. Mivati Agrawal 28.84
4 Interest Income fram subsidiaries Rainkow Infrabuild Pyvt. Lid 23.93
Rainbow Paper JLT i68.12
5 Loan given to subsidiariesMNet of repayment) Rainbow Paper LT 3797.58
Conwvertibbe Warrant lssued Dinepa Suppliers Put Limited 1518.75
7 Equity share izsued on conversion of warrant Orient Mewsprint Limited 3660000
Drupa Suppliers Pyt Limited 1215.00
] Unsecured Loan taken Rainbow Industrial Park Pyt Ltd 2750000
Dirupa Suppliers Pyt Limdted 4545.00
Earnings per share:
Particulars 31.03.2013 |31.03.2012
Met profit for the year attributable 1o Eguity Shareholders ¥lacs 3536.16 3276.25
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding for
Basic earning pershares Mumbers B4505382 | 89567027
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding for
Diluted earning per shares Mumbears 7102232 | 930918617
Basic earnings per share (face value of T 2 each) ' 374 3.66
Chluted earnings per share (face value of T 2 2ach) 7 364 352

Derivative Instruments :

al  The Company has not entered into any forsand contract to offset its foreign currency risks arising from the amounts
denominated in currencies other than the Indian Rupee.



bi

Foreign currency exposure at the year end not hedged by derivative instruments.

LAl im Lacs)
201213 2011-12
Payables — IS0 9,54 5555
Receivables - USDr 18.64 11.58
Receivables - Euro 074 079
Bank Balance = USD = 62.63
Term Loans - Ukl 41.27 393.7E
35) Information regarding stock:
&) Consumption of Raw Materials:
{7 in Lacs)
Product 2012-13 2011-12
Armaunt Armaunt
Base & Waste Papers 22968.82 2149676
Chemicals (Coating Division) 500.98 30B,32
TOTAL 234659 B0 2139508
bl Warkin Progress:
[¥in Lacs)
Product 201213 20112
Amount ArnnaLnt
Paper & others B, 5 49589
Chemicals (Coating Division) 642 154
TOTAL BE7.06 903,43
) Sales, Opening and Closing Stock of Finished Goods:
{7 in Lacs)
Sales Opening Stock Closing Stock
Product 2013-13 200112 200213 2011-12 200213 2011-12
Amount  Amount Amount Amount  Amount Amount
Fapers 5181756 4474835 31541 24254 292,72 31551
di  Details of Goods Traded:
¥ in Lacs)
Goods Purchased 201213 2011-12
Amount Armaunt
Papsar 4127.50 993,12
&) Value of impaorts calculated on CLF, basls during the financial year in respect of;
47 in Lacs)
2012-13 2011-12
(il FawMaterials B9 720,03
il Components-—spare pars 25,08 4,84
(i) Chemical 100.51 12888
(ivy Capital Goods 217200 26508
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fi  Expenditure inforeign currency during the financial year:

[¥ im Lacs)
201213 2011-12
{1y Technical Know howe / Professional Fees ¢ Consultancy Fees 18.18 175
{ili Intereston FCHR Loan 1425451 2383.94
{il]  Foresgn Traveling Exp 13.70 15.46
gl Value of Raw Materials, stores, Chemical & Spares consumed during the year;
[T in Lacs)
Amount % of total consumption
2012-13 2011-12 2012-13 2011-12
Raw Materlals:
i1 Imiported 7192882 Friog 33% 35%
il Indigenous 15540.98 14163.99 67% B5%
Taatal 23465.80 21885.08 100% 1 00%
Stores, Spares & Chemical:
i1 Impaorted 214,39 31308 5% &%
il Indigemous 38467 42 3733.04 95% Q4%
Testal 4081.81 3545.00 TO0%: 100
(¥ In Lacs)
2012-13 2011-12
hl  Earming in Foreign Exchange:
- Export of goods on F.OLE, basis 73ig1.ae7 O340 44
Interest on Deposits 132 236,06
il Theamount remitted during the year in foreign currency for dividend (%) 127.44 11688
- Mumbser of non-resident sharehobders 15 18
Mumber of shares held by them ERE LT 29221775

(*} Thie Company has not remitted any amauntin foreign currencies on account of dividends during the vear and does not
have infarmation as 1o the extent 1o which remittances, if any, in farebgn currencies on account of dividemds have been
made byfon behall of non-resident shareholders, The particulars of dividends payable to non-resident shareholders which

were declared during the vear, are given,

A6, Previous year's figures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necassary.

Chairman & Managing Director
Execiitive Directar

Directar

Directar

Directar

Company Secretary

A5 per our separate report of even date attached. For and on behall of the Board of Directors
For Talat & Talati
Chartered Accountants Ajay Goenka
(Firm Rieg Mo: 110758W) Rahul Mahesiwarl
Rajendra Patawari
Anand Sharma Shashikant Thakar
Partrer Kantibhal Patel
Mem. Mo, 129033 Funesl Rathd
Ahmedabad Ahmedabad

May 9, 2013 May 9, 2013
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An ISO 9001, 14001 & OHSAS 18001 RAI N B
Certified Company

T T N Y L T S Y T SR TR ) RAINBOW PAPERS LIMITED

TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN

FORM - ‘A’
1. | Name of the Company: Rainbow Papers Limited
2. | Annual Financial Statements for the year ended: | 31t March 2013
3. | Type of Audit Observations: Un-qualified
4. | Frequency of Observations: | N.A.
5. | Signed by:

- Shri Ajay Goenka
CEO/Managing Director

- CFO

N.A.

- Mr. Anand Sharma - Partner
Talati & Talati, Chartered Accountants

- Shri Shashikant Thakar
Chairman, Audit Committee
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